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Virgin Media Finance PLC
Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020

The directors present their Strategic Report on Virgin Media Finance PLC for the year ended 31 December 2020.

For the purposes of this Strategic Report, Dircctors” Report and financial statements, the Virgin Media Finance
PLC group will be referred to as “the group”, Virgin Media Iinance PL.C the entity will be referred to as “the
company™, the group headed by Virgin Media Inc. will be referred to as “the Virgin Media group™, and the group
headed by Liberty Global ple will be referred to as “the Liberty Global group™.

As at 31 December 2020, the company is a wholly-owned subsidiary undertaking of Virgin Media Inc. ("Virgin
Media™) which is itsell a wholly-owned subsidiary of Liberty Global ple (“Liberty Global™). As at 31 [December
2020, the fnancial information of Virgin Media Finance PLC and its subsidiaries are included in the combined
financial statements of the “Virgin Media group®. Virgin Media group comprises of (i) Virgin Mcdia and its
subsidiarics and (ii) NewCo Iloldco 5 limited and its subsidiaries (Virgin Media Ireland). The combined
financial statcments of Virgin Media group are available to the public and may be obtained from Liberty
Global’s website at www libertyglobal.com.

The group operates under the Virgin Media brand in the United Kingdom (UK) and Ireland.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The group provides broadband internet, video, fixed-tine telephony, mobile and broadeasting serviees in the UK
and Ireland and is one of the largest providers of residential communications services in these countries in terms
ol the number of customers. The group believes its advanced, deep-fibre cable access network enables us o offer
faster and higher quality broadband internet services than other digital subscriber line (DSL.) market participants.
As a result, it provides its customers with a leading next generation broadband internet service and one of the
most advanced interactive television services available in the UK markets.

The group provides mobile services to its customers using a third-party network through mobile virtual network
operators (MVNQ) arrangements.

In addition, through the Virgin Media Business brand, the group offers a broad portfolio of B2B voice, data.
internct, broadband and managed services solutions to small businesses, medium and large enterprises and public
sector organisations in the UK.

At 31 December 2020. the group provided services to 6 million residential cable customers on its network. The
group provides mobile telephony services to 3 million contract mobile customers and 0.1 million prepay mobile
customers over third party networks. As of 31 December 2020, §0% of the group’s cable customers received
multiple scrvices and 58% were “triple-play™ customers, receiving broadband internet. video and fixed-line
telephony scrvices.

Liberty Global is an international converged broadband internet, video, fixed-line telephony and mobile services
company operating under the consumer brands Virgin, ‘Telenet, UPC, the combined Sunrise UPC, as well as
VodaloneZiggo, which is owned through a 50:50 joint venwre. Liberty Global’s substantial scale and
commitment 1o innovation cnable it 1o invest in the infrastructure and digital platforms that cmpower its
customers to make the most of the digital revolution, Liberty Global delivers market-leading products through
nexl-generation networks that connect customers subseribing o 49 million (at 31 December 202() broadband
internet, video, fixed-ling telephony and mebile services across its brands. Liberty Global also has significant
investments in 1TV, AlE3Media. CANAL+ Polska, LionsGate, the Formuta b racing serics and several regional
sports networks.

On 7 May 2020, Liberty Global enuered into a contribution agreement with, among others, Telefonica, SA
(Telefonica). Pursuant to this agreement. Liberty Global and Telefonica agreed to form a 50:30 joint venture,
which will combine Virgin Media's operations in the UK with Telefonica’s mobile businegss in the UK to create
a nationwide integrated communications provider. The formation of the joint venture was completed on 1 June
2021.




Virgin Media Finance PLC

Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (continued)

On 30 November 2020, as part of a wider group restructure, the group disposed of its investment in UPC
Broadband Ircland T.imited. The group received consideration of £478.8 millien in respect of this and therefore
made a £668.5 million gain on disposal {see note 22).

‘The principal activity of the company s to facilitate the group's financing structure by implementing the group's
capital managemen: policics, making and facilitating external borrowings and holding investments in subsidiary
companics, The company 's imvestments include substantially all of the Virgin Media group’s trading operating
companics.

The group’s reporting scgments are based on its method of intemal reporting to Liberty Global and the
information used by its chief exceutive officer, who is the chief operating decision maker, or CODM, to cvaluate
segment performance and make capital allocation decisions.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the comparative profit and loss acceunt has been re-presented so that the
disclosures in relation to discontinued operations, being the disposal of the group’s investment in UPC
Broadbund Ircland Limited, refate to all operations that have been discontinued by the balance sheet date (sce
note 22).

For the vear ended 31 December 2020, revenue decrcased by 0.9% 10 £4,790.3 million from £4,835.7 million
{restated) in 2019 primarily as result of a decrease in residential cable revenue and mobile revenue partially
offset by an increasc in B2B revenue. See further discussion of revenue under ‘Performance against Key
Performance Indicators below.

Cost of sales increased by 0.7% to £1,650.6 million for the vear ended 31 December 2020, from £1.,638.5 million
(restated} in 2019, Cost of sales increased during 2024, compared to 2019 primarily due to higher MVNG costs
and an increase in interconnecl and roaming costs, offset by a decrease in programming and copyright costs
primarily due t lower costs for certain premium and basic content and loss of exelusive programming content
as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, a decrease in mobile handset and other device costs primarily duc to
lower sales volumes due to clesure of retail stores as a result of the COVI-19 pandemic.

Gross profit decrcased by 1.8% 10 £3,139.7 million for the vear ended 31 December 2020, from £3,197.2 million
(restated) for the year ended 31 December 2019 primarily duc to the reasons detailed above. Gross margin has
decreased by 0.9% to 65.5% for the year ended 31 December 2020 from 66.1% (restated) for year ended 31
December 2019,

Administrative expenscs increased by 30.5% to £2,818.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, from
£2,159.7 million (restated) for the vear ended 31 December 2019. This was partly driven by an increase in
depreciation associated with property and equipment additions related to the installation of customer premiscs
equipment, the expansion and upgrade of our networks and other capital initiatives. In addition, related-party
fees and allocations, related to our estimated sharc of the applicable costs incurred by Liberty Global's
subsidiarics increased to £323.7 million lor the year ended 31 December 2020, from £225.4 million (restated) for
the vear ended 31 December 2019, These charges generally relale to management, finance, legal. technology and
other corporate and administrative services provided 1o or by our subsidiarics.

Finance income decreased to £457.6 million for the vear ended 31 December 2020, from £487.2 million
(restated) for the vear ended 31 December 2019, ‘The lower interest income arising due to lower average interest
rates on related party loan receivables from other Liberty Global group undertakings is offsct by lower foreign
exchange pains.

Finance costs increased to £968.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from £884.2 million (restated)
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The increase in costs was principally driven by higher losses on the fair
vatue of derivative financial instruments in 2020. In addition, there was an overall decrease in interest payable
due lower weighted average interest rates on a slightly higher average outstanding third-party debt balance.
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REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS (continued)

Performance against Key Performance Indicators
Revenne
Residential and B2B revenue includes both subscription and non-subscription rey enue.

Residential cable subseription revenue includes amounts received from subscribers for ongoing services and the
recognition of deferred installation revenue over the associated contract period. Residential cable non-
subscription revenuc includes, among other items, ¢hannel carriage fees, late fees and revenue from the sale of
equipment.

Residential mobile subscription revenue includes amounts received from subscribers for ongoing scrvices.
Residential mobile non-subscription revenue includes, among other items, interconnect revenue and revenue
from sales of mobile handsets and other devices.

B2B subscriplion revenuc represents revenue from services to certain small or home office {SOHO) subscribers.
SOHO subscribers pay a premium price to receive expanded service levels along with broadband internet, video
and fixed-line telephony or mobile services that are the same or similar to the mass marketed products offered to
residential subscribers, 32B non-subscription revenue includes revenue from business broadband internet, video,
fixed-line telephony, mobile and data services offered to medium to Jarge enterprises and on a wholesale basis,
to other operators.

Other revenue primarily includes broadeasting revenue.

Revenue by major category for the years ended 31 Decernber 2020 and 2019 was as follows:

Restated

2020 2019 Increase/

Revernue: £ million £ million (decrcasc)
Residential revenue

Cable 3,349.9 3.400.0 (1.5)%

Mobile 610.4 623.6 (2.1)%

Total residential revenue 3,960.3 4.023.6 {1.6)%

B213 Revenue 765.8 742.1 3.2%

Other revenue 64.2 70.0 (8.3

4,790.3 4,835.7 {0.9%

The decrease in residential cable subscription revenue related to a change in ARPU was adversely impacted by
(i) the COVID-19 pandemic, most notably with respect to video services, including lower revenue of
approximately £22 mitlion associated with the loss of exclusive programming content, primarily during the
second and third quarters of 2020, comprising (a) credits that were given to certain customers and (b} the
estimated impact of certain customers cancelling their premium sports subscriptions, and (ii) lower revenue
refated to regulated contract notifications.

ARPU Average Revenue Per Unit is the average monthly subscription revenue per average fixed-line customer relationship or mobile subscrber, as
apphcable
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REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEYELOPMENTS (continuned)

For the year ended 31 Idecember 2020, mobile revenue decreased to £610.4 million from £623.6 million
(restated} in 2019. The decrease in mobile revenue relates 1o a decrease in non-subscription revenue from mobile
handset sales. This is partially offsct by an incrcase in residential mobile subscription revenue primarily due 1o
an increase in the average number of mobile subscribers, partially offset by lower ARPU in the UK.

The increase in B2B subscription revenue is primarily due to an inercase in the average number of broadband
internet 8OO subscribers in the UK. The decrease in B2B non-subscripiion revenue is primarily attributable to
cur operations in the UK., including the net eftfect of (i) an inercase in upfront revenue recognised in association
with long-term leases of a portion of our network, (ii) lower revenue from data sersices, (iii) a decrease in
revenue related to business network scrvices and (iv) lower revenue from wholesale {ixed-line telephomy
services.

Summary residential cable statistics

Sclected statistics for the group’s residential cable customers are shown below:

Restated
2020 2019
Total cable customers 5,626,700 5.518,100
Cable products:
Broadband internet 5,420,100 5,271,000
Video 3,498,000 3,687,400
Fixed-line 1elephong 4,463,200 4,605,500
Total cable products 13,381,300 13,563,900
Cable products per customer (i) 2.38x 2.46x
Triple play penetration 58.2% 61.8%
Cabhle ARPU (i) £50.10 £49.39

(i} Fach telephone, television and broadband internet subscriber directly connected 1o the Virgin Media group’s
network counts as one product. Accordingly, a subscriber who receives both telephone and television services
counts as two products. Products may include subscribers receiving some services for free or at a reduced rale in
connection with promotional offers.

(i) Cable ARPU is calculated by dividing the averape monthly subscription revenue (excluding interconnect
fees, channel carriage fees and late fees) for the indicated period, by the average of the opening and closing
number of customer relationships for the period.

The total number of cable products fell to 13,381,300 al 31 December 2020 from 13,563,900 at 31 December
2019, representing a net decrease in products of 182,600,

Summary mobile statistics

Selected statistics for the group's mobile customers are shown below: .
2020 2019

Postpaid mobile customers (i} 3,223,900 2,915,600
Prepaid mobile customers (i) 134,400 263,900
Total mebile customers 3,358,300 3,179.500
Mobile ARPU (ii) £8.44 £8.98

W
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REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS (continued)

(1} Our mobile subscriber count represents the number of active subscriber identification module (SIM) cards in
scrvice rather than services provided. For example, if a mobile subscriber has both a data and veice plan on a
smartphone this would equate to one mebile subscriber. Alternatively, a subseriber who has a voice and data
plan for a mobile handset and a data plan for a laptop (via a dongle) would be counted as two mobile subscribers.
Customers who do not pay a recurring monthly fee are cxcluded from our mobile subscriber counts after a 30
day period of inactivity.

(it} Mobile monthly average revenue per user ("Mobile ARPU?) is calculated by dividing the average monthly
mobile subscription revenue (excluding sales and late fees) for the indicated period by the average of the
opening and closing balances of total mobile subscribers in service for the period.

The group added 308,300 postpaid subscribers in 2020. Growth in postpaid subscriptions was offset by a lower
prepaid base, resulting in an overall increase in the group’s moebile basc of 178,800 in 2020,

FINANCING

As of 31 December 2020, the group had £12,776.4 million of financial liabilities compared with £12,494 8
million as at 31 December 2019, The principal changes to financial liabilitics during the year arc discussed as
follows:

Trade Receivables Transaction

In May 2020. Virgin Media Trade Receivables Financing ple, a third-party special purpose financing entity, was
created for the purposc of facilitating the effering of certain notes. These notes are collateralized by eertain trade
receivables of Virgin Medig, creating a variable interest in which Virgin Media is the primary beneficlary and,
accordingly. Virgin Media, and ultimately liberty Global, are required to consolidate Virgin Media Trade
Receivables Financing ple. The offering of these notes resulted in net proceeds of £214.4 million (‘the May 2020
proceeds’).

Senior Notes Transactions

In June 2020, the group issucd 2030 senior notes with principal amounts of $675.0 million. The net proceeds,
together with the May 2020 proceeds were used 1o redeem in full €460.0 million and $388.7 million outstanding
principal amount of 2025 senior notes.

In June 2020, the group issued an additional 2030 senior notes with principal amounts of $250.0 million and
€500.0 million. The nct proceeds from the issuance of these notes were used (1) to redeem in full $497.0 million
outstanding principal amounts of existing 2024 senior notes and $123.1 million and £44.1 million outstanding
principal amounts of existing 2022 senior notes and (2) for gencral corporate purposes.

The new secured notes rank pari-passu with the group's existing secured notes and subject to certain exceptions.
share in the same guarantees and security granted in favour of its existing secured notes.

Senior Secured Notes Transactions

In June 2020, the group issued 2030 senior secured notes with principal amounts of $650.0 million and £450.0
million. The net proceeds from the issuance of these notes were used (1) o tedeem in full £525.0 million
outstanding principal amounts of existing 2027 senior secured notes, (2} to redeem in {ull £360.0 million
outstanding principal amounts of existing 2029 senior sccured netes and (3) to redeem in full £80.0 million of
the £521.3 million outstanding principal amount of existing 20235 senior secured notes.

In November 2020, the group issued, via a private placement 2030 senior seeured notes with principal amounts
of $265.0 million, £235.0 million and £30.0 million. The net proceeds from the issuance of these notes were
used (1) redeem in full £441.3 million outstanding principal amounts of existing 2025 senior sccured notes and
{2) for general corporate purposes.

The new senior secured notes rank pari-passu with the group's existing senjor secured notes and senior secured
credit facility. and subject to certain exceptions, share in the same guarantees and sccurity granted in favour of
its existing senior sceured notes.
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FINANCING (continued)

Vendor Financing Notes Transactions

In June 2020, Virgin Media Vendor I'inancing Notes ITT Desipnated Activity Company (Virgin Media 'inancing
Il Company) and Virgin Media Vendor Financing Notes IV Designated Activity Company (Virgin Media
Financing IV Company, and together with Virgin Media Financing 111 Company, the 2020 VM Financing
Companies) were created for the purpose of issuing certain vendor financing notes. The 2020 VM Financing
Companies are third-party special purpose financing entitics that are not consolidated by Virgin Media or
Liberty Global.

Virgin Media Financing 11 Company issued vendor financing notes with principa! amounts ot £300.0 million
and £400.0 million. Virgin Media Iinancing 1V Company issuced vendor financing notes with principal amounts
of §500.0 million. The net proceeds from the June 2020 Vendor Financing Notes were used by the 2020 VM
Financing Companies 1o purchase certain vendor-financed receivables of Virgin Media and its subsidiaries from
previously-existing third-party special purpose financing cntitics, Virgin Media Receivables Financing Notes T
Diesignated Activity Company and Virgin Media Receivables Financing Notes 11 Designated Activity Company
{(the Original VM Financing Companies) and various other third parties.

Other 2020 Financing Transactions

In September 2020, in conncction with the formation of the UK JV on 1 June 2021, the group entered into a
$1,300.0 million term loan facility. At 31 December 2020, the term lean facility is undrawn and only available to
be drawn and utilised upon consummation of the UK JV. Accordingly the group’s unused borrowing capacity at
31 December 2020, excludes the availability of the term loan [acility.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The group is exposed to volatility in its cash flows and carnings resulting from changes in interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates. The group has entered into various derivative instruments with a number of
counterpartics 10 managgc this volatility of its cash flows and carnings.

The group has eatered into cross-currency interest rate swaps 1o manage interest rate and foreign exchange rate
currency cxposurcs resulting from the variable and fixed rates of interest paid on borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the (unctional currency of the borrowing entity. Additionally, the group
has entered into interest rale swaps to manage interest rate exposures resulting from the variable rates of interest
paid on sterling denominated debt obligations and movements in fair valuc on certain of its sterling denominated
debt. The group has also entered into forward rate contracts to manage foreign exchange rate currency exposures
rclated 1o certain committed and forecasted purchases. See note 21 to the group [inancial statements for further
information on the group’s derivative instrumernts.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Financial risk management

Details of the financial risks and how they are managed are outlined in note 20 to the group financial statements.
The principal financial risks faced by the group are credit risk, intercst rate risk, foreign exchange rate risk and
ltquidity risk.

Principal non-financial risks

Virgin Media Finance PLC is a member of the Virgin Media group, which manages the principal non-financial
risks and uncertaintics and is headed by Virgin Media Inc. These risks, among others, are discussed in more
detail in the combined financial statements of the Virgin Media group. The principal non-financial risks include
the following:

s cconomic and business conditions and industry trends in the United Kingdom (UK} and Ircland;

o the competitive environment in the broadband internet, cable television and telecommunications
industries in the UK including competitor responscs to our products and services:

s fluctuations in currency exchange rates and interest rates;

e instability in global financial markets, including sovereign debt issucs in the European Union (EU) and
related fiscal reforms;
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

consumer disposable income and spending levels, including the availability and amount of individual
consumer debt;

changes in consumer television viewing and broadband internet usage preferences and habits;

consumer acceplance of our cxisting service offerings, including our broadband internet, cable
television, fixed-line telephony and mobile and business service offerings, and of new technology,
programming alternatives and other products and services that we may offer in the futare;

the group’s ability to manage rapid technological changes;

the group’s ability (o maintain or inecrcase the number of subscriptions to our cable television,
broadband inteenet, fixed-line telephony and mobile service offerings and our average revenue per
household;

the group’s ability to provide satisfactory customer service. including support for new and evolving
products and services;

the group’s ability to maintain or increase rates to our subseribers or to pass through increased costs w
our subseribers;

the impact of the group’s future financial performance, or market conditions gencrally. on the
availability, terms and deployment of capital;

changes in, or failure or inability to comply with, government regulations in the UK and adverse
oulcomes from regulatory proceedings;

government intersention that impairs the group’s competitive position, including any intervention that
would open the group’s broadband distribution networks to competitors and any adverse change in the
group’s accreditations or licenses:

the group’s ability to obtain regulatory approval and satisfy other conditions nccessary 1o close
acquisitions and dispositions, and the impact of conditions imposed by competition and other regulatory
authorities in connection with acquisitions:

the group’s ability to successfully acquire new businesses and, if acquired, to intcgrate. realise
anticipated efficiencies from. and implement our business plan with respect 1o, the busincsses we have
acquired or that we expect to acquire;

changes in laws or treatics relating to taxation, or the interpretation thereof, in the UK;

changes in laws and government regulations that may impact the availability and cost of capital and the
derivative instruments that hedge certain of the group’s financial risks;

the ability of suppliers and vendors (including our third-party wireless network providers under the
group’s MVNO arrangements} to timely deliver quality products, equipment. software, services and

ACCESs:

the availability of attractive programming for our video semvices and the costs associated with such
programming;

uncertaintics inherent in the development and integration of new business lines and business strategies;

the group’s ability to adequately forecast and plan future network requirements. including the costs and
benefits associated with the network extension;
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)
¢ the availability of capital for the acquisition and/or development of tcleccommunications networks and
SErvices:

¢ problems the group may discover post-closing with the operations, including the internal controls and
financial reporting process of businesses we acquire;

e the leakage ol sensitive customer data;

¢ the outcome ol any pending or threalened litigation:

o the loss of key employees and the availability ol qualitied personnel:

+  changes in the nature of kev strategic relationships with partners and joint venturers;

+ adverse changes in public pereeption of the “Virgin™ brand, which we and others license from Virgin
Enterpriscs Limited, and any resulting impacts on the goodwill of customers toward the group: and

= cvents that are outside of the group’s control, such as political unrest in international markets, terrorist
attacks, malicious human acts, natural disasters, pandemics or epidemics (such as the coronavirus
(COVID-19)) and other similar events.

Brexit

The UK’s departurc from the Luropean Union (LEU) could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations or Hquidity. On 23 June 2016, the UK held a referendum in which
voters approved, on an advisory basis, an exit from the EU, commeonly referred to as “Brexit™.

The UK formally cxited the LU on 31 January 2020, On 24 December 2020, the UK and the EU reached the
“Trade and Cooperation Agreement,” referred 1o as the LU-UK Agreement. On 30 December 2020, the EU-UK
Agreement was approved by the UK Parliament, with retrospective ratification {rom the EU Parliament expected
lo follow in 2021.

In the meantime, the EU-UK Agreement has been provisionally brought into effect. The EU-UUK Agreement
focuses on four main sectors, namely trade, economic and social cooperation, sceurity and govermnance.

Examples of the potential impact Brexit could have on our business, financial condition or results of operations
include:

e changes in foreign currency exchange rates and disruptions in the capital markets;

e shortages of labour necessary to conduct our business, including our network extension in
the UK;

e disrupiion to our UK supply chain and refated increased cost of supplies;

»  aweakened UK economy resulting in decrcased consumer demand for our products and services in the
UK;

e legal uncertainty and potentially divergent national laws and regulations as the UK determines
which EU laws and dircctives w replace or replicate, or where previously implemented by
enactment of UK laws or regulations, to retain, amend or repeal; and

e various geopolitical forces may impact the global cconomy and our business, including, for
cxample, other FUJ member states (in particular those member states where we have
operations) proposing referendums to, or ¢lecting to, exit the LU,
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)
COVID-19

in March 2020, the World Health Qrganization declared COVID-19 10 be 2 global pandemic. In response to the
COVID-19 pandemic, emergency measures have been imposed by governments worldwide, including travel
restrictions, restrictions on social activity and the shutdown of non-cssential businesses.

The global COVID-19 pandemic continues to adversely impact the economies of the countrics in which we
operate, However, during the first quarter of 2021, the adverse impact on our company continued to be relatively
minimal as demand for our products and services remained strong.

It is not currently possible to estimate the duration and severity of the COVID-19 pandemic or the adverse
economic impact resulting from the preventative measures taken to contain or mitigate its outbreak, therefore no
assurance can be given that an extended period of global economic disruption would not have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations in fulure periods.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

‘The directors will continuc to review management policies in light of changing trading and market conditions.
Further detail of the future outlook of the group, ts provided in the combined financial statcments of the Virgin
Media Group for 2020, which are available from the company secretary at Virgin Media, 500 Brook Drive,
Reading, United Kingdom, RG2 6UU and on Liberty Global's website at www libertvglobal.com.

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

This statement Is intended to disclose how our directors have approached and met their responsibilities under
$172 Companics Act 2006.

In line with Liberty Global’s goal of enhancing the long-term value for the benefit of its sharcholders, the
directors of the Virgin Media oversee the management of the group, to help assure that the interests of our
sharcholders are served.

The directors ol the group. apply the Corporate Governance Guidelines (page 14), essential to our business
integrity and performance. Therefore, as part of group operations as & whole consider:

s long-term consequences of decisions;

«  cmployees” interests;

*  business relationships with suppliers and customers;

o the impact of our operations on the environment and communities in which we operate; and
e the need to act fairly between shareholders,

The level of engagement of the directors is critical in the group’s successtul investment in the infrastructure and
platforms that cmpower our customers 10 make the most of the digital revolution and coennect to the
entertainment, experiences and people they love. We believe that our scale and synergies with our partners help
bring the best connectivity and entertainmemt to our customers and, during 2020, the directors provided
thoughtful guidance to cnsurc that we enhanced and expanded our networks wisely, investing with purpose in
the 1echnology, talent and territories with the most potential.

Customers/Partnerships — Virgin Media provides its customers with a leading, next-gencration broadband
service, one of the most advanced interactive 1elevision services available in the UK market and mobile services.
We believe our relationships with our partners help us deliver unigue products and services to our customers.
The continued strategic involvement by the directors in these decisions 1o help foster these relationships is
critical to the group’s long term success.

10
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT (continued)

Responsibility — Community, Environment & Suppliers — As part of Virgin Media's strategy, we are
committed to growing a responsible and sustainable business. Our vision of using digital to make good things
happen focuses on two pillars; growing responsibly and sustainably and doing more good with digital. As
outlined in the Directors’ Report, we have outlined five sustainabilily goals to ensure that our growth and
contribution to the UK is delivered in a way that’s good for people and the environment.

People - At Virgin Media, we know building an inclusive environment is essential 1o our growth. We're working
on building a fully inclusive culure, celebrating evervbody’s individuality and differences. We want to emposver
our people, so they fecl valued, limitless and inspired to help build meaningful connections. The Directors’
Report provides further information on Virgin Media’s policy on employment and disabled cmployees.
Consideration of these factors and other relevant matlers is embedded into all Virgin Media group decision-
making, strategy development and risk assessment throughout the y ear. Further information is available on our
website: hitps:/www . virginmedia.com/corporate/sustainability and in the consolidated accounts of Liberty
Global ple which are available on Liberty Global's website at www liberty global.com.

On behalf of the board

"6

Director

28 June 2021
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the group and company for the vear
ended 31 December 2020,

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

‘The group made a profit lor the year, after tax, of £661.2 million (2019: £377.1 million). The directors have not
recommended the payment of a dividend (2019: £nil).

DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS

The dircctors who served during the year and thereafter were as follows:
W T Castell (resigned 9 March 2020)

M T Fries (resigned 1 Junc 2021)

M O 1lifzi

R G McNeil (appointed @ March 2020)

1. Milner (appointed 1 March 2021)

S-P Pascu (appointed 3 March 2020, resigned 16 November 2020)

C B L Withers (appointed 23 April 2020)

The dircotors of the company have been indemnified against liability in respect of proceedings brought by third
partics, subject o the conditions set out in the Companics Act 2006, Such qualifying third party indemnity
provision is in force for directors scrving during the financial year and as at the date of approving the Directors’
Report.

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND DISABLED EMPLOYEES

The group remains committed to the continuing introduction and practice of progressive emplovment policies
which reflect changing business, social and employec needs.

‘The group aims to ensurc that everyone connected to it i3 treated fairly and equally, whether they are a current or
former member of staff, job applicant, customer or supplier.

Nobady should be discriminated against, either directly or indircetly, on the grounds of gender, gender
reassignment, marital status, pregnancy, race, ethnic origin, colour, nationality, national origin, disability, sexual
orientation, religion or beliet, age. political affiliation or trade union membership, The policy applics to anyone
who works for, who has worked for or who applies to work for Virgin Media or its partners. ‘Lhat mecans
permanent, temporary, casual or part-time stalll anvone on a fixed-term contract, ageney staff and consultants
working with the group. ex-employees and people applying for jobs. This applies to all aspects of employ ment,
including recruitment and training.

The group gives full consideration to applications from employces with disabilities where they can adequatcly
fulfil the requirements of the job. Depending on their skills and abilitics, employees with a disability have the
same opportunities for promotion, career development and training as other cmployees. Where existing
employees become disabled, it is the group’s policy to provide continuing employment wherever practicable in
the same or an alternative position and to provide appropriate training to achieve this aim.

In linc with Liberty Global's “Code of Business Conduct’ (the “Code™), the group’s emplovees and directors are
expected 1o display responsible and ethical behaviour, 10 follow consistently both the meaning and intent of this
Code and to act with integrity in all of the group’s business dealings. Managers and superyvisors are expected to
take such action as 1s necessary and appropriate te ensure that the group’s business processes and practices arg in
full compliance with the Code.
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EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND DISABLED EMPLOYEES (continued)

Employee Involvement
The group is dedicated to increasing the practical involvement of individuals in the running of its business. It
seeks to achieve this as follows:

e all employees are encouraged to understand the aims of the group and of their own business area and to
contribute to improving business performance through their knowledge, experience, ideas and
suggestions. This requires strong communication to ensure that employees are bricfed as widely as
possible about activities and developments across Virgin Media. The online news channel, open
torums, newsletters and 1cam mectings play important roles in this, as do the development of people
management skills and the ongoing conversations about performance and development which underpin
performance conversutions;

e the group ensures that all employees are involved and consulted through “Voice™ which operates at a
national, divisional and local level. Tt enables employces and employers to have an open and transparent
relationship with a flow of information. Tt is focused around sharing information, involving employvecs
in decision making, gaining access to knowiedge and experience or resolving differences of opinion.
Involving employees in decision making enhances confidence and job satisfaction, creates a sense of
belonging and empowerment, reduces stress and impacts positively on wellbeing.

The group fosters a 1cam spirit among emplovees and their greater involvement by oflering participation in
bonus or local variable reward schemes and team development opportunities. Virgin Media also opcerates various
recognition schemes which are designed to reward emplovees for behaviours which are consistent with the
Virgin Media values and has a volunteering scheme which allows employecs to take five days each year to
volunteer with registered charities or organisations of their choice.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY POLICIES

Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability

Virgin Media has a comprehensive five year sustainability strategy in place which sets out how we will support
and connect communities across the UK, reduce our impact on the environment and continue to become a more
inclusive company.

Our strategy is called the ‘Meaningful Conneclions Plan” and we have set far-reaching goals across three key
arcas: people, the planct and communitics.

People

Virgin Media will ereate new opportunities for hundreds of people from underrepresented communities so they
can access skills and employment. This includes women in STEM, disabled people, people from LGBTOQ+,
underrepresented cthnicities, neurodiverse and other communities with low social equity.

Planet
Virgin Media has set goals to achicve net zero carbon operations (Scopes 1 and 2) and zero wasle operalions by
the end of 2025,

This will be achicved via energy efficicncy measures, cutting emissions, sourcing renewable power supply and
reducing wastc by increasing rcusc materials across our products and operations,

Communities
Virgin Media will use its connectivity and presence in towns and citics nationwide to support projects which
create 1.5 million meaningful connections 1o creale greater community belonging.

Virgin Media has also begun a five year strategic partnership with the charity, Carers UK, which will use
technology and innovation 1o address the loneliness experienced by cight out of ten unpaid carers, and will work

together 1o conneet more carers to each other and to their communities.

The company and group made no political contributions during the financial year that would require disclosure
(2019 - £nil).
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ENVIRONNMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY POLICIES (continued)

A member of Virgin Media’s Executive Committee is responsible for cach of the three key arcas of the
Meaningful Connections Plan. The strategy has been developed by Virgin Media’s Sustainability tcam which
annually reports progress being made against long-term goals.

Throughout 2020, Virgin Media continued to make progress on social and environmental goats, highlights
include:

e Since 2018, 1.204,427 disabled people have accessed the Support to Work employment service —
funded by Virgin Media and our previous charity partner, Scope. This has helped disabled people to
gain the skills and confidence to get and stay in work;

*  Since 2019, Virgin Media’s operational carbon footprint (Scope 1&2) has reduced by 7% across UK
and Ireland and 46% against our previous 2014 baseline;

¢ Also delivered a 13% reduction in scope 3 emissions since 2019 baseline; and

+ Virgin Media continues to source 100% of eleciricity from renewable sources as a member of the
RET00 initiative and in November 2020 became a founding signatory of the Media Climate Pact. In
addition, Virgin Media also achieved zero waste to landfill across all site based and logistics operations.

Virgin  Mcdia  communicates  regularly  updates  on  performance  and  kev  highlights  via
www, virginmedia.com/sustainability,

GOING CONCERN

As Virgin Media Iinance PLC is cither a direct or indirect parent of all of the trading companies in the Virgin
Media group, these consolidated financial statements include substantially all of the trade and assets of the
overall Virgin Media group. Whilst forecasts and projections, which take account of reasonably possible changes
in trading performance, have not been prepared at a Virgin Media Finance PLC group level, they have heen
prepared for the Virgin Media group as a whole. These forecasts and projections showed that cash on hand.,
together with cash from operations and the undrawn revolving credit facility , are expected to be sufficient for the
Virgin Mcdia group's and hence the group’s cash requirements through to at least 12 months from the datc of
this report.

Taking inte account these forecasts and projections and after making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable
expectation the group has adequate support and rcsources to continue in operational existence for at least 12
months from the date of the signing of these financial statements.

For these reasons the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements.
Consideration of the ongoing impact of COVI-19 has not altered this conclusion.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The group is committed to conducting business with honesty, integrity and respect. Corporate governance affects
the way the group dircets its relationship with its stakeholders. The group believes that the highest standards of
corporate governance are essential to the group’s business integrity and performance. The group has adopted a
number of policies and procedures to support solid corporate governance in every area of the group’s operations.

Corporate Governance Guidelines adopted by Liberty Global ple’s Board of Directors serve as a framework for
Board governance over the affairs of the group for the benefit of its shareholders. These include Code of
Business Conduct, Code of Ethics. Audit Committee Charter. Compensation Commitice Charter, Neminating
and Corporate Governance Committee Charter and Succession Planning Committee Charter.

Further information on Corporate Governance is available to the public on Liberty Global's website at
www libertyglobal.com/or under the heading “Corporate Responsibilin®. The information on the website is not
part of this report.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Disposal of investments in subsidiaries
On 4 March 2021, as part of a wider group restructure, the group disposed of its Investments in Cullen
Broadeasting [.imited and Tullamore Beta Limited.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit
infurmation, being information required by the auditor in conncction with preparing its report, of which the
auditor is unaware. Having made enquirics of fellow directors and the group's auditor, each director has taken
all the steps that hefshe is obliged to take as a director in order w0 make himselffhersclf aware of any relevant
audit information and to cstablish that the auditor is aware of that information.

AUDITOR

KPMG LLP will be re-appoeinted under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006.

This report was approved by the board on 28 June 2021 and signed on its behalf

A

C B E Withers

Director
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Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in respect of the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and
Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2020

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and parent Compary linancial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the dircctors o prepare Group and parent Company financial statements for cach
financial year. Under that the law they are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with
international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
applicable law and they have clected 1o prepare the parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK
accounting standards and applicable, including FRS 101 Rediuced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a truc and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent Company and of their profit or loss for
that period. In preparing each of the Group and Parent company financial statements, the directors are required
to:

*  sclect suitable accounting policics and then apply them consistently;
* make judgements and estimates that arc rcasonable, relevant, reliable and prudent;

e for the Group financial statcments, stalc swhether they have been prepared in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companics Act 2006;

¢ for the parent Company financial statcments. state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been
followed. subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e asscss the Group and parent Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and

¢ use the going concern basis of accounting unless they cither intend to liquidate the Group or the parent
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternatiye but o do so,

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
parent Company’'s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006,
They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have gencral
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open 1o them to safeguard the assets of the Group and 1o
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report and a
Directors’ Report that complics with that law and those regulations.

The dircetors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the company’'s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.




Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Virgin Media Finance PLC
1 Our opinion is nnmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Virgin Media I'inance ple (“the Company™) for the year ended 31
December 2020, which comprise the group income statement and statement ol comprchensive income, group
balance sheet. group statement of changes of cquity, group cash flow stalement, company balance shect,
company statement of changes in equity, and the related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2 in the
consolidated financial statements and note 2 in the company financial statements.

In our opinion:

+ he financial statements give a true and fair view ol the state of the Group’s and of the parent Company’s
allairs as al December 31, 2020 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended;

e the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companics Act 2006;

e the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting
standards, including RS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

e the [inancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements ef the Companies Act
2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (*ISAs (UK)Y") and
applicable law. Our responsibilitics are described below., We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under,
and arc independent of the Group in accordance with, UK cthical requirements including the FRC Ethical
Standard as applicd to listed entitics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufticient and
appropriate basis for our opinion,

2 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are thosce matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statemenis and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not
due to fraud) identified by us, including thosc which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy: the
allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matiers were
addressed in the context of our awdit of the financial statements as a whole, and in formming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separaie opinion on these matters. Lo arriving at our audit opinion above, the key audit
matters, in decreasing order of audit significance, were as follows:

Group: Capitalization of costs associated with construction and installation activities

The risk -- Overstatement of profits:

Certain internal and external labour and overhead costs incurred are capitalized as part of Property and
equipment (part of which is included within its the net book value of £5,647m (2019; £6,098m)). These
capitalized costs arc associated with the capital projects undertaken by the group and involve estimation of the
amount of time and costs ihal should be capilalised. The most significant risk is that thc group may
inappropriately capitalize construction and installation costs. The key risks in determining if construction and
installation costs qualify for recognition as an assct, include whether the costs are directly attributable to
bringing the asset 1o the location and condition nceessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by the group; it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group, and if
the cost can be measured reliably.
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Group: Capitalization of costs associated with construction and installation activities {continued)

Qur response

Cur procedures included:

Control operations - We evaluated the design and implementation of key internal controls in place to identify
which construction and installaiion costs should be capitalized, and tested their operating effectiveness.

Personnel interviews - We challenged the amount of internal costs capitalized during the year by comparing ©
budgets, interviewing department heads to determine the level of time individuals have spent on capital items,
and analysed the changes to significant estimates wuiilized by the group to determine the amount of internal costs
to be capitalized (if any), and other changes in the business with a potential impact on cost capitalization during
the year.

Tests of details - For both internal and external costs capitalised we selected a sample of property and equipment

additions on costs capitalized and assessed the naturc of the costs based on underdying internal and third party
documentation therehy assessing the appropriatencss of the group’s cost capitalization conclusions.

Parent Companv: Recoverability of the Company’s investments in subsidiaries

The risk - {ow risk-high value:

The carrying amount of the Company’s investments in subsidiaries of £4,699.4m (2019: £4,699.4m) represents
70.4% of the company’s total assets. Their recoverability is not at a high risk of significant misstatement or
subject to significant judgment. However, due to their materiality in the context of the financial statements, this
is considered to be the area that had the greatest effect on our overall audit of the parent company.,

Ouir response
Our procedures included:

Tests of detail: We compared the carrving amount of material investments with the relevant subsidiaries” balance
sheet to identify whether their net asscis, being an approximation of their minimum recoverable amount, were in
excess of their carrying amount and assessing whether those subsidiaries have historically been profit-making.

Assessing subsidiary audits: We assessed the work performed by the subsidiary audit teams of those subsidiaries
where audits are performed and considered the results of that work on those subsidiaries” profits and net assets.

3 Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our andit

Materiality for the group financial statements as a wholc was sct at £47.9m (2019: £51.6m), determined with
reference 10 a benchmark of revenue adjusted for discontinued operations of £4,790.3m (2019: £5,168m) of
which it represents 1.0% (2019: 1.0%). We consider revenue to be the most appropriate benchmark as it provides
amore stable measure vear on vear than group profit before tax.

Materiality for the parent company financial stalements as a whole was set at £33.4m (2019: £51.0m).
determined with reference 10 a benchmark of Company total asscts, of which it represents 0.5% (2019: 0.8%).

In line with our audit methodology, our procedures on individual account balances and disclosures were
performed to a lower threshold, performance materiality, so as to reduce 1o an acceptable level the risk that
individually immaterial misstatements in individual account balances add up to a material amount across the
financial statements as a whole,

Performance materiality was set at 75% (2019: 73%) of materiality for the financial statements as a whotle,
which equates to £35.9m (2019: £38.8m) for the group and £23.1m (2019: £38.3m) for the parent company. We
applied this percentage in our determination of performance materiality because we did not identify any factors
indicating an elevated level of risk.
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3 Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit (continued)

W agreed to report o the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected identificd misstatements cxceeding
£2.4m in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

The Group tcam performed the audit of the Group as if it was a single aggregated sct of financial information,
The audit was performed using the materiality and performance materiality level set out above.

4 Going Concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the Company or the Group or to ccasc their operations, and as they have concluded that the Company's
and the Group’s financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no
matcrial uncertaintics that could have cast signiticant deubt over ther abihity 1o continue as a going concern for
at lcast a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going concern period™).

We used our knowledge of the Group and Company, its industry, and the general economic environment 1o
identify the inherent risks to its business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group’s and
Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. The risks that we
considered most likely to adversely affect the Group and Company’s available financial resources and/or metrics
relevant to debt covenants over this period were:

- Ability to continue to perform and provide services under the lockdowns in the UK and Ireland. as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic
- Current levels of debt driven by Vendor Financing arrangements

We considered whether these risks could plausibly affect the liquidity or covenant compliance in the going
concern period by assessing the Directors’ sensitivities over the level ot available financial resources and
covenant thresholds indicated by the Group and Company’s financial forecasts 1aking account of severe, but
plausible adverse effects that could arise from these risks individually and collectively,

We considered whether the going concern disclosure in note 2 to the financial statements gives a full and
accurate description of the Drectors” assessment of going concern, including the identitied risks and related
sensitivities. '

QOur conclusions based on this work:

. we consider that the [Hrectors™ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate;

. we have not identified, and concur with the Directors” assessment that there is not, a material
uncertainty related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt
on the Group or Company's ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period;

. wc have nothing material to add or draw attention to in refation to the Directors’ statement in note 2 to
the financial statements on the use of the going concern basis of accounting with no material
uncertaintics that may cast significant doubt over the Group and Company 's use of that basis for the
going concern period, and we found the going concern disclosure in note 2 to be acceptable.

However, as we cannot predict all futurc cvents or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the abos e conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Group and Company will continue in operation,

5 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud ("fraud risks™) we assessed events or conditions that

could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud, Our risk
asscssment procedures included:
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5 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect (continued)

. Enquiring of directors and management as to the Group high-level poelicies and procedures to prevent
and detect fraud, including the internal audit function, and the Group channel for “whistlcblowing”™, as
well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

. Reading Board minutes;

. Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management/ directors;
. Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected refationships;
. Using our own forensic specialists to assist us in identifving fraud risks based on discussions of the

circumstances of the Group

We communicated idemified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit. This included communication frem the group to component audit tcams of relevant fraud
risks identified at the Group level and request to component audit 1cams to report to the Group audit tcam any
instances of fraud that could give rise to a material misstatement at group.

As required by auditing standards. and taking inlo account possible pressurcs to meet profit targets, we perform
procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that Group and
component managemeng may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries and the risk of bias in
accounting cstimates and judgements such as impairment. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk
related 1o revenuc recognition because of the straight-forward recognition of cable revenuc over time, and the
low value nature of the individual revenue transactions.

We also identified a fraud risk related o inappropriate capitalisation of external and internal costs in response to
possible pressures to meet profit targets. I'urther detail in respect of the inappropriate capitalization of external
and internal costs is set out in the key audit matter disclosures in section 2 of'this report.

In determining the audit procedures, we took into account the results of our evaluation and testing of the
operating effectiveness of the Group-wide fraud risk management controls.

We also performed procedures including:
. Identifving journal entries to test for all full scope components based on risk criteria and comparing the

identified cntrics to supporting documentation. These included those posted by senior finance
management, those posted and approved by the same user and those posted to unusual accounts

J Evaluated the business purpose of significant unusual transactions
. Assessing significant accounting estimatcs for bias

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

We identificd arcas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and scetor experience, and through discussion with the
directors and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Group's
regulatory and legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and
procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

As the Group is regulated, our assessment of risks involved gaining an understanding of the control environment
including the entity’s procedures for complying with regulatory requirements.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of
non-compliance throughout the audit. This included communication from the group to component audit teams of
relevant faws and regulations identified at the Group level, and a request for component auditors to report to the
group team any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that could give rise to a material
misstatement at group.

The potential effeet of these law s and regulations on the financiaf statements varies considerably.
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5 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect (continued)

Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulations that dircctly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companices legislation), distributable profits legislation, taxation
legislation and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on
the related linancial stalement items.

Sccondly, the Group is subject o many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Group’s license to operate. We identificd the following arcas
as those most likely to have such an effect: data and privacy law reflecting the growing amount of personal data
held and competition and markets regulation. recognising the nature of the Group's activities. Auditing standards
limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the
directors and other management and inspection of regulatery and legal correspondence, if any. Therelore. i a
breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not
detect that breach.

We discussed with the audit committee matiers related to actual or suspected breaches of laws or regulations, for
which disclosure is not nceessary, and considered any implications for our audit.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing 1o the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
matcrial misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our
audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing standards would identily it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remainced a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may imolve
collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overrile of internal controls. Our audit
procedurcs arce designed to detect material misstatementl. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance
or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

6 We have nothing to report on the other information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report together with the financial
statcments. Our opinion on the financial stalements docs not cover the other information and, accordingly. we
do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below. any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is 1o read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information thercin is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledpe. Based solely on that work we have not identified material misstalements in
the other information.

Strategic report and Directors’ report

Based solely on our work on the other information:

e we have not identificd material misstatements in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report;

e in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements; and

e inour opinion thosc reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,
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7 We have nothing to report on the other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinioa:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been reccived from branches not visited by us; or

= the parent Company financial stalements arc not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

+ cerain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made: or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
8 Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement sct out on page 16, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of
the financial statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstalement,
whether due to {raud or crror; assessing the Group and parent Company s abitity to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company or 1o cease operations. or have no realistic
alternative but te do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Qur objectives arc 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements as a whole are free
from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuc our opinion in an awlitor’s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee thai an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstalemenls can arise from fraud or
error and are considerad material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller  description  of our responsibilizies  is provided on the FRC's  website  al
www. fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

9 The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely te the Company’s members. as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members
those matters we are required Lo state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility o anyonc other than the Company and the
Company s members. as a body, for our audit work, for this report. or for the opinions we have formed.

Antony Whittle (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

1 St Peter’s Square

Manchester

M2 3AE

29 Junc 2021




Virgin Media Finance PLC
Group Income Statement and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Restated*
2020 2019
Notes £ million £ miilien
Revenue 3 4,790.3 4,835.7
Cost of sales (1,650.6) (1,638.5)
Gross profit 3.139.7 3.197.2
Administrative expenscs 12.818.2) (2,159.7)
Group operating profit 4 321.5 1.037.5
Finance income 7 457.6 487.2
Finance cosls 8 (968.5) (884.2)
Net finance costs (510.9) (397.0)
(Loss)/profit before tax (189.4) 640.5
Income tax benelit/(expensc) 9 173.7 (103.0)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations (15.7) 537.5
Profit from discontinued operation (attributable to equity holders of
the company) 22 6709 39.6
Profit for the year 661.2 3771
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension plans 28 5.6 (7.2)
Tax (expense)benefit on defined benelit pension plans 9 {0.9) 1.0
4.7 (6.2)
Items that will or may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Impact of movements in cash flow hedges 21 4.7 5.4
Exchange differences on the retranslation of foreign operations (11.9) 18.2
(7.2) 23.6
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity
holders 658.7 594.5
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent 645.9 575.8
Non-controlling interests 12.8 18.7
658.7 594.5

The notes on pages 27 to 77 form part of the financial statements.

*0On 30 November 2020, the group sold its Irish subsidiary UPC Broadband Ireland Limited to another
subsidiary of Liberty Global that is outside of the Virgin Media Group. This has been reported as a discontinued
operation (see note 22) and the prior year comparative information has been restated accordingly.
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Virgin Media Finance PLC
Group Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2020

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Financial assets

Trade and other receivables
Deferred tax asscts

Defined beneftt pension plan asset

Current assets

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables
[nventorics

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other pavables
Financial liabilitics
Provistons

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other pavables
Financial liabilities
Provisions

Ddefined benefit pension plan liability

Total liabilities
Net assets

Capital and reserves

Equity share capital

Share premium account

Other capital reserves

Unrealised gains and losses

Foreign currency translation reserve
Rerained earnings

Yirgin Media Finance PL.C group shareholders' equity

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

The notes on pages 27 to 77 form part of the financial staternents.

These tinancial statements were approved by the directors on 28

L Miine
Director

Company Registration Number: 05061787
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19
28
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31 December

31 December

2020 2019
£ million £ million
22393 2,444.3
5,647.0 6,098.0
6.234.0 54229

71.8 36.3

1,718.1 1.544.2

92.4 86.4
16,0026 15,632.1
752.5 82.5

603.3 650.9

434 54.6

19.3 B 33.9

1.418.3 821.9
17,421.1 16.454.0
(1.689.6) (1,591.9)
(2,152.9) (2,031.3)

) @2.7) (3.6)
(3,843.2) (3.626.8)
(21.5) (26.8)
(10.623.5) (10,463.5)
(68.1) (124.9)

(7.9)
_(10,713.1) (10,623.1)
{14,558.3) (14.249.9)
28628 2,204.1
0.1 0.1

625.9 6259
(2,093.6) (2,093.6)

154 10,7

17.4 793

42259 3,572.8
2.791.1 21452

71.7 389

2,862.8 2.204.1

June 2021 and are signed on their behalf by:
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Yirgin Media Finance PLC
Group Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2020

QOperating activitics

Profit for the year

Profit from discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit before income tax including discontinued operations

Adpustments to reconcite profit for the year attribuiable to equity holders of

the parent 1o net cash inflow from operating activities
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangiblc assels

Impairment of network assets

Net finance costs

Sharc-based payments

Income taxes

Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of discomtinued operations

Unrealised losses on derivative nstruments

Non-cash foreign exchange movements

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase o inventories

{Increase) in prepayments and other assets

Increase/{decrease) in trade and other pavables

Increase in accruals, delerred income and other current liabilitics
(Deerease)increase in deferred mncome and other long term liabilitics
{Iecreasce) in provisions

Net cash inflow provided by continuing operating activitics
Net cash inflow [rom discontinued operaling activities

et cash inflow from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Loans to parent and group undertakings

(l.osses)fproceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds on sale of discontinued operations

Change in restricted cash

Interest recerved

Net cash outflow from continuing investing activities
Net cash outflow from discontinued investing activities
Net cash outflow from investing activities

Financing activities

Interest paid

Settlement of cross currency interest rate swaps

New borrowings, net of financing fecs

Repayment o f borrowings

Capital lease pavments

Net cash outflow from continuing financing activities
Net cash outflow from discontinued financing activities
Net cash outflow from financing activities

Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents

Net (decereasej/inerease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at | January
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The notes on pages 27 to 77 form part of the financial statements.
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Restated

2020 2019

Notes £ million £ million
661.2 5771

22 (676.9) (39.6)
(15.7) 5373

M 9gR.1 9834
10 174.5 193.1
- {464.6)

417.2 5482

47.4 42.0

(87.3) 122.7

(1.2} (33)

(668.5) -

2272 1809

(142.2) (140.9)

17.2 168.9

8.0 6.6

43.7) (19.3)

20.1 (14.9)

146.3 2313

(5.2} i6.1

_ 139.5, (t4)
1,022.7 2.386.5

734.7 781
17514 B 24640
(401.8) (400.9;

(#96.3) (444 9)

(0.3) 22

22 478 8 -
17.7) {16.5)

2771 i 284.2

(560.4) (5§75.9)
4 1y
(584.5) (60317

(354.4) (619.7)

130.2 874

38510 39757

{6.570.4) (5,238.1)
) 45.6)
(1,186.1) (1.840.3)

_ 55y (2.1
T L9le) (8R4

4.1 (1.4}

{14.6) 17.7

15 339 16.2
15 193 339




Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

1

Authorisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with IFRS

The consolidated financial statements of Virgin Media Finance PLC for the year ended 31 December 2020 were
authorised for issue by the board of directors on June 2021 and the Group Balance Sheet was signed on the
board’s behalf by [, Milner. Virgin Media Finance PLC is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled
in the UK. The company’s shares arc not publicly traded although the Senior Notes issued by the company are
registered on The International Stock Lixchange in Guernscy.

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted by the group are set out below and have all been applicd consistently
throughout the current vear and the preceding year except as discussed below,

Basis of preparafion
These financial staternents were prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost basis in
accordance with the Companics Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™).

In accordance with IFRS 5 ‘non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’, the comparative profit
and loss account has been re-presented so that the disclosures in relation to discontinued operations relate to all
operations that have been discontinued by the balance sheel date (see nole 22).

A discontinued operation is a component of the group that has been disposed ol or is classified as held
for sale and thal represents a separate major line of business or geographical arca of operations, is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose ol such a line of business or arca of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view 1o resale. The results of discontinucd opcrations arc
presented separately in the statement of profit or loss

Going concern

Notwithstanding net current liabilitics of £2,426.7 million as at 31 December 2020 for the group and a prolit for
the group for the year of £661.2 million, the financial statements have been approved on the assumption thal the
group remains a going concern. The following paragraphs summarise the basis on which the directors have
reached their conclusion.

It is Virgin Media’s practice for operational and financial management to be undertaken at a group level rather
than for individual entities that arc wholly owned by the group. Treasury opcrations and cash management for
all of Liberty Global's wholly owned subsidiarics arc managed on a Liberty Global group basis. As part of
normal business practice, regular cash [low furecasts for both short and long term commitments are undertaken
at group level.

As Virgin Media Finance PLC is either a direct or indirect parcnt of substantially all of the trading companies in
the Virgin Media group, these consolidated financial statements include substantially all of the trade and asscis
of the overall Virgin Media group. Whilst forecasts and projections, which take account of reasonably possible
changes in trading performance, have not been prepared at a Virgin Media Finance PLC group level. they have
been prepared for the Virgin Media group as a whole. Thesc indicate that cash on hand, together with cash from
operations, repavment of amounts due to Virgin Media from the Liberty Global group and undrawn revolving
credit facilitics, arce expected to be sufficient for the Group’s cash requirements through to at least 12 months
from the approval of these financial statements. In addition, Virgin Media Inc. has formally indicated its
intention to continuc to support the company financially for at least this period.

Whilst the detailed cash flow forecasts arc prepared at the group level, the directors have also assessed the
position of the company. Notwithstanding net Habilitics of £3.131.1 million as at 31 December 2020, this
asscssment indicates that, taking account of reasonably possible downsides, the company will have sufficient
resources, through funding from fellow subsidiary companies to meel its liabilitics as they fall due for that
period.

As with any company placing reliance on other group entities for {inancial suppert, the directors acknowledge
that therc can be no certainty that this support will continue although, at the date of approval of these financial
statements. they have no reason to believe that it will not do so. Consequently, the directors are confident that
the company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months
from the date of approval of the financial statcments and have prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. Consideration of the ongeing impact of COVID-19 and the Contribution Agrecment (referred to
in note 32) has not altercd this conclusion.
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Virgin Media Finance PLC
Naotes to the Group Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

2

Accounting policies (continued)

Variable interest entities

On 30 November 2018, in connection with certain Liberty Global group rcorganisations, the group completed
the fransfer of Liberty Property Holdeo 1 Limited and Liberty Property loldco 11 Limited from the group to
Liberty Property Holdco T Limited, another subsidiary of Liberty Global group outside of Virgin Media group.
Liberty Property THoldeo T Limited, Liberty Property Holdeo IT Limited and Liberty Property Holdco 11 are
collectively referred to as “the Liberty Property Comparics.” The assets held by the Liberty Property
Companics are used by the group creating a vartable interest in the 1.iberty Property Companics for which the
group is the primary beneficiary and, accordingly, the group is required to consolidate the Liberty Property
Companics.

Following the completion of the joint venture with Echo Bideo SARL, the Liberty Property Companies will no
longer be consolidated in the group financial stalements of Virgin Media Finance PLC (sec note 32).

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management 1o make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for revenues
and cxpenses during the year. The nature of estimation means that actual cutcomes could differ from those
estimales,

The most significant judgements and estimations used by management in the process of applying the group's
accounting policies are discussed below;

Impairment of intangible assets »
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite Hves are assessed for impairment amnually and when such
indicators exist,

When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expeeted future eash flows from
the assel or cash-gencrating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present valuc of
these cash flows. Where [(air value less cost 1o sell is used, the valuation must represent the [air valuc of the
cash-generating unit in an orderly transaction between market participants under current market conditions, less
costs 1o sell.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and allowances to the extent that it is probable that
taxable prefit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant judgement is required to
dctermine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategics.

Details of the measurcment of the group’s deferred tax assel recognition and measurement are provided in note
9.

Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment, other than frechold land, on a straight-line basis
at rales calculated to write off the cost of each asset over the shorter of its leasing period or estimated useful
lite. The estimation of an assets useful cconemic life has a significant effect on the annual depreciation charge.
‘The useful life and carrying values are reviewed annually for impairment and wherce adjustments are required,
these are made prospectively.

The nature and amount of labour and other costs to be capitalised with respect to construction and installation
aclivities involves significant judgement. In addition to direct external and internal labour and materials, the
group also capitalises other costs directly attributable to the group’s construction and installation activities,
including dispatch costs, quality-control costs, vehicle-related costs and certain warehouse-retated costs. The
capitalisation of these costs is based on time sheets. time studics, standard costs, call tracking systems and other
verifiable means that directly link the costs incurred with the applicable capitalisable activity. The group
continuously monitors the appropriateness of its capitalisation policies and update the policies when necessary
1o respond 1o changes in facts and circumstances, such as the development of new products and services. and
changes in the manner that installations or construction activities are performed.
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Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
tor the year ended 31 December 2020

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of [inancial instruments (where active market
quotes arc not available} and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Management bases its assumplions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that
case management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual priecs that
would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date (see note 21).

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries arc entities controlled by the group. The group controls an ¢ntity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. In assessing control, the group takes into consideration potential voting rights. The
acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. The financial statements of
subsidiarics are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Losses applicable to the non-controfling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the
non-controlling interests even if doing so causes the non-controlling intercsts to have a deficit balance.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations between entities that are under common control are accounted for at book vatue. The
assets and liabilities acquired or trans{erred are recognised or derccognised at the carrying amounts previously
recognised in the group controlling shareholder's consolidated financial statements. The components of equity
of the acquired entitics are added to the same components within the group equity and any gain/loss arising is
recognised directly in equity.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, arc climinated. Unrecalised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted inveslees are
climinated against the investment to the extent of the group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are
eliminaled in the same way as unrealised gains, but oaly to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Foreign currency translation

The group’s consclidated financial statements are presented in pound sterling. which is also the parent
company’s functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies arc initially recorded in the focal entity’s
functional currency by applyving the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monctary asscts and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the [unctional currency rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. All exchange differenees are included in the Group Income Statement, except where
hedge-accounling is applied and for differences on monctary asscts and liabilities that form part of the group’s
net investment in a foreign operation. These are recorded directly in equity until the disposal of the net
investment, at which time they are reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Non-monctary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monctary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency arc translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Goodwill

Business combinations, other than common control business combinations, are accounted for using the
acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the group. The
group measures goodwill at the acquisition datc as:

«  the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

s the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus

s the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree; less

e the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable asscts acquired and liabilities
assumed.

Costs related to acquisitions, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities. are expensed
as incurred.
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Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

2

Accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill {continued)
When the excess is negative any gain on bargain purchase 1s recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Any confingent consideration payable is rccognised at fair value ar the acquisition date. 1f the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and sctilement is accounted for within equity.
Otherwise, subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

On a transaction-by-transaction basis, the group clects to measure non-controlling intercsts. which have both
present ownership interests and arc entitled 1o a proportionate share of net assets of the acquiree in the event of
liquidation, either at its fair value or at its proportionate interest in the recognised amount of the identifiable net
asscts of the acquiree at the acquisition date. All other non-controliing interests are measured at their fair value
at the acquisition date.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost includes costs directly attributable 10 making the asset capable of operating as intended.
Property, plant and equipment acquired through business combinations is initially recorded at fair value on
acquisition.

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment, other than frechold land, on a straight-line basis
at rates calculated to write ofl the cost of cach asset over the shorter of its leasing period or estimated useful life
as fotlows:

Network assets, cable plant and equipment
Network asscts - 3-30years

Network assets includes construction in progress which is not depreciated and comprises ol materials,
consumables and direct labour relating 1o network construction and is stated at the cost incurred in bringing
cach product 1o its present location and condition, as follows:

Raw materials and consumables - Purchase cost

Work in progress - Cost of direct materials and labour
Other fixed assets:

Right-ol-usc property - Period of leasc

Frechold property, other than land - 30 vears

1.easchold improvements - 20 years or, if less, the term of the lease
Furniture and fixtures - 5-12 vears

Computcr equipment - 3-Sycars

Motor vehicles - Svears

Labour costs relating to the design, construction and development of the network, capital projects. and related
services arc capitalised and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the life of the relevant asscts.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when ¢vents or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrving values may not be recoverable. The useful lives and residual values arc
reviewed annually and where adjustments arc required. thesc are made prospectively.

Impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

In accordance with T1AS 36 Tmpairment of Assets’, intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight-
line basis over their respective estimated useful lives, and reviewed for indications of impairment at cach
reperting date. [f anyv such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assel is required, the
group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of its
fair valuc less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset. unless the asset does
not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrving amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is writien
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks speeific to the asset.  [mpairment losses of continuing operations arc recognised in the
Group Income Statement in those expense calegories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

2 Accounting policies {continued)

Impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment (continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. [f such indication exists, the recoverable amount
is cstimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed, other than on goodwill, only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment foss
was recognised.

Provisions for liabilities and charges

A provision is recognised when the group has a present. legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event for which it is probahle that the group will be required to scttle by an outflow of resources and for which a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions arc reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

When the effect of the time value of money is material provisions are discounted using a rate that reflects the
risks specific to the Liability. Where discounting is used, the unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred
and recognised in profit and loss as an interest expense.

Leases

On the lease commencement date, (1} a ROU asset is recognised representing the right to use an underlying
assel and (i1) kease liabilitics representing the group’s obligation to make lease payments over the lease term.
[ease and non-lease components in a contract arc gencrally accounted for separately.

I'he group initially measures lease liabilities at the present vatue of the remaining lease payments over the lease
ferm. Options to extend or terminate the lease are included only when it s reasonably certain that the option
will be exercised. As most of the group’s leases do not provide enough information to determine an implicit
interest rate, a portfolio level incremental borrowing rate is used in the present value caleulation, ROU assets
arc initially measured at the value of the lease lability, plus any initial direet costs and prepaid lease payments,
Iess any lease incentives received,

ROU assets arc generally depreciated on a straight-tine basis over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life
of the asset. Interest expense on the lease Hability is recorded using the cffective interest method.

Lessor
When the group acts as a lessor, it delermines at Iease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
opcerating leasc.

To classify each lease, the group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a
finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the group considers certain
indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

The group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Interest bearing loans and horrowings
All loans and borrowings arc initially recognised at fair value less directly atiributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subscquently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses arising on the repurchase, settlement or otherwise cancellation of liabilities are recognised
respectively in finance income and finance costs.

Finance costs which are incurred in connection with the issuance of debt are deferred and set off against the

borrow ings to which they relate. Delerred finance costs are amortised over the term of the related debt using the
cffective interest method.
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Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Interest bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Borrowings arc classified as creditors: amounts falling due within one year unless the company has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period in which
case they arc classified as creditors: amounts falling due alter more than one year.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The group has established policics and procedures to govern the management of its exposurc to interest rate and
foreign currency exchange rate risks through the use of derivative financial instruments, including interest rate
swaps, cross currency interest rate swaps and forcign currency forward rate contracts.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and arc subsequently remeasured at fair vatuc at cach balance sheet date.

Derivatives are recognised as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilitics when the fair
value is negative.

The foreign currency forward rate contracts, interest rate swaps and cross-currency inlerest rate swaps are
valued using internal models based on observable inputs, counterparty valuations or market transactions in
cither the listed or o er-the counter markets, adjusted for non-performance risk. Nen-performance risk is based
upon quoted credit defaull spreads for counterparties 1o the contracts and swaps. Derivative contracts which are
subject 1o masler netting arrangements are not offset and have not provided, nor require, cash collateral with
any counterparty.

While these instruments are subject to the risk of loss from changes in exchange rates and interest rates, these
losses would generally be offset by gains in the related cxposures. Financial instruments are only used to hedge
underlying commercial exposures. The group does not enter into derivative financial instruments for specutative
trading purposes, nor does il enter into derivative financial instruments with a level of complexity or with a risk
that is greater than the exposure to be managed.

FFor derivatives which are designated as hedges the hedging relationship is documented at its inception. This
documentation identifies the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being
hedged and how effectiveness will be measured throughout its duration. Such hedges are expected at inception
to be highly effective.

The group designates certain derivatives as either fair vatue hedges, when hedging exposure to variability in the
fair value of recognised asscts or liabilities or firm commitments, or as cashflow hedges. when hedging
exposurc to variability in cash flows that arc cither attributable 1o a particular risk associated with a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction.

Derivatives that are not part of an effective hedging relationship, as set out in IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(IFRS 9), must be classified as held for trading and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The treatment ef gains and losses arising from revaluing derivatives designated as hedging instruments depends
upon the nature of the hedging relationship and are treated as follows:

Cash flow hedges

For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recogniscd directly
in Other Comprehensive [ncome. while the ineffective portion is recognised in the Group Income Statement.
Amounts taken to Other Comprehensive Income are reclassified to the Group Income Statement when the
hedged transaction is recognised in the Group Income Statement, such as when a forccast sale or purchase
occurs, in the same line of the Group Income Statement as the recognised hedged item. Where the hedged item
is the cost of a non-financial assct or liability, the gains and losses previously accumulated in equity are
transferred o the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or liability. If a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in the Group
Income Statement. If the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or
rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked. amounts previously recognised in Other Comprehensive
[ncome remain in eyuits until the foreeast transaction occurs and are reclassified 1o the Group [ncome
Statement.
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Accounting policies {continued)

Fair value hedges

Yor fair valuc hedges, the changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument are recognised in the Group
Income Statement immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged assct or Liability that
are attributable 1o the hedged risk. The change in the fair vatue of the hedging instrument and the change in the
hedged item attributable 1o the hedged risk are recognised in the line of the Group Income Statement relating 1o
the hedged item.

Lf the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or excreised without replacement or rollover, or if its
designation as a hedge is revoked. then the fair value adjusiment to the carrying amount of the hedged item
arising from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.

Inventories

Invenlory consists of goods for resale and programing inventories which are valued at the lower of cost or net
realisable value using the [irst-in. first-cut (FIFQ) method. Cost represents the invoiced purchase cost of
inventory. Net realisable value is based on judgements, using currently available information about obsolete,
slow moving or defective inventery. Based upon these judgements and estimates, which arc applied consistently
from period to period, an adjustment is made to state the carrving amount of inventory held for resale at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently reporied at amortised cost, net of an
allowance for impairment of trade receivables. The allowance for impairment of trade receivables is estimated
based upon our assessment of anticipated loss related o uncollectible accounts receivable. We use a number of
factors in determining the allowance, including, among other things, collection trends, prevailing and
anticipated economic conditions, and specific custemer eredit risk. The allowance is maintained until either
payment is received or the likelihood of collection is considered o be remote. For additional information
regarding our trade reccivable and allowance for impairment of trade receivables, see note 13.

Concentration of credit risk with respect 10 trade receivables is limited due to the large number of residential
business customers. We also manage this risk by disconnecting services o cuslomers whose accounts are
delinguent.

Cash and short term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits in the Group Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three menths or less. For the purpose of the Group Cash Flow Statement,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafis.

Tax

Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recevered from or paid to the
taxation authoritics, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively cnacted by the balance sheet
date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equily and not in the income
statement. The directors periodically evaluate positions taken in the tax returns with respect to siiuations in
which applicable tax regulations arc subject to interpretation and establish provisions where appropriate.
Income tax is charged or credited to Other Comprehensive Income if it relates to items that are charged or
credited to Other Comprehensive Income.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilitics and their carry ing amounts for financial reporting purposcs at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaciion that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects ncither the
accouniing profil nor taxable profit or loss.
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Tux (continued)

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresecable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets arc recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

*  When the deferred tax asset relating o the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an assct or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

¢ In respect of deductible temporary diflferences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets arc recognised only to the extent that it is prebable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foresceable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differcnecs can be utilised.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset Lo
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax asscts are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future Laxable profits will allow the deferred tax assct to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
assct is realised or the liability is scttled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have becn enacted or
substantively enacted at the reperting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, Deferred tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlving transaction cither in Other Comprehensive Income or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a lepally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assels against current income tax liabilitics and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
tax authority.

Pensions

The group contributes to the Virgin Media sponsored group personal pension plans for eligible employees.
Contributions to these schemes are recognised in the Group Income Statement in the period in which they
become payable, in accordance with the rules for each of the plans.

The group operates two (2019: three) defined benelit pension plans, which require contributions 10 be made to
separately administered funds. The plans are closed to new entrants.

The regular cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is atiributed to individual years using the
projected unit credit method. Variations in pension cost. which are identified as a result of actuarial valuations,
arc amortised over the average expected remaining working lives of employecs in proportion to their expected
parroll costs. Past service costs are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or immediately if the benefits have vested.

When a settlement (climinating all obligations for benefits already accrued) or a cuntailment (reducing future
obligations as a result of a material reduction in the scheme membership or a reduction in future entitlement)
occurs, the obligation and related scheme asscts are re-measured using the current actuarial assumptions and the
resultant gain or loss recognised in the Group Income Statement during the period in which the settlement or
curtailment occurs.
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Pensions (continned)

The interest clement of the defined benefit pension cost represents the change in present value of scheme
obligations resulting from the passage of time and is determined by applying the discount rate 1o the opening
present value of the benefit obligation. taking into account material changes in the obligation during the year.
The expected return on scheme assels is based on an assessment made at the beginning of the year of long term
market returns on scheme assets, adjusted for the effect of fair value of the scheme assets of contributions
received and benefits paid during the year. The difference between the expected return on scheme assets and
the interest cost is recognised in the Group Income Statement.

Actarial gains and logses are recognised in full in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period
in which they oceur.

The delined benefit pension assct or liability in the Group Balance Sheet comprises the total for each scheme of
the present value of the defined benefit obligation (using a discount rate based on high quality corporate bonds),
less any past service cost not vet recognised and less the fair value of scheme assets out of which the obligations
are to be scttled directly. Fair value is based on market price information and, in the casc of quoted sccuritics,
is the published bid price.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is realised or realisable and earned. Revenue is measured at the fair
valuc of the consideration reccived, excluding discounts, rebates and VAT. The following criteria must also be
met before revenue is recognised:

e persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists between the company and the company's customer;
s delivery has occurred or the service has been rendered;

o the price for the service is fixed or determinable; and

+ recoverability is reasonably assured

Revenue eamed from contracts 1o be recognised in line with performance obligations based on a five-step
model.

On inception of the contract we identify a “performance obligation™ for cach of the distinet goods or services
we have promised to provide to the customer. The consideration specified in the contract is allocated 1o each
performance obligation identified based on their relative standalone selling prices, and is recognised in revenue
as they are satisficd. The following table summarises the performance obligations we have identified for our
major revenue lines and provides information on the time of when they are satisfies and the related revenue
recognition policy.

Revenuc line Performance obligation Revenue recognition policy

Service revenue — Cable | Provision of broadband internet, video, and fixed- | Revenue for these types of services is

Networks line telephony services over our cable network to | recognised evenly over the period of the
customers. agreement as the services are provided.

Performance obligations are identified for each
distinet service for which the customer has
contracted and arc considered © be satisficd over
the time period that these services are delivered,

[nstallation and other When the group enters into contracts to provide ‘These fees are generally deferred and
upfront fees scrvices 1o customers, the group ofien charges recognised as revenue over the
installation or other upfront fees. contractual period, or longer il the
upfront fee results in a matenal renewal

The group is obliged to ensure 1t can supply
services Lo the customer premise as per the
customer contract. This includes cable plant and
equipment mstallation at the customers premisc.

right.

Installation 1s not censidered as a separate
performance obligation.
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Revenue recognition (continued)

B2B revenue Provision of data, voice and network solution The group defer upfront installation
scervices, including the sale and maintenance of and certain noarceurming fees
eguipment to business customers, Installation charges | recenved on business-to-business
are charged in relation 1o the provision of services. conlracts where we maintain

cwnership of the installed
The group is obliged to provide the customer with the | equipment. The deferred fees are
connectivity services and or equipment stipulated the | amortised into revenue on a

CUSLOMET Contract. siraght-hine basis, gencrally over

the longer of the term of the
Installation ts not considered as a separate arrangement of the expected period
performance obligation. of performance.

From time 1o time, we also enter
into agreements with certain B2B
customers pursuant 10 which they
are provided the right to use certain
elements of our nctwork.

IFthese agreements are determined
to contain a lcase that meets the
criteria 1o be considered a sales-
type lease, we recognize revenue
from the lease component when
control of the network element is
transferred 10 the customer.
Mobile revenue - Provision of minutes, texts and data over our mobile The group recognise revenue from
Adrtime services netnork. mobile services in the period in
which the related services are
provided. Revenue from pre-pay
customers 1s deferred prior to the
commencement of services and
recognised as the senvices are
rendered or usage rights expire.
Mobile revenue - Provision of mobile handset delivery to the customer. | Arrangement consideration

Handsets . . . . . ) . allocated to handsets 1s recognmised
T'he group is obliged to provide delivery ef mobile a5 revenue when the goods have

handscts as requested by the customer. been delivered and title has passed.

Tor custemers under a mobile
handset instaiment contract that is
independent of a mobile airtime
services contract, revenue is
recognised upon delivery.

The group is obhiged to provide the customer with a
SIN which is provisioned with contracted allowances
cach month,

There are no material obligations In respect of returns, refunds or warrantics.

Consideration from mobile contracts is allocated to the airtime service component and the handset component
based on the relative standalone selling prices of cach component. When the group offer handsets and airtime
services in separate contracts entered into at the same time, the group account for these contracts as a single
contract.

Incremental revenues are generated based on usage for calls and video on demand. The entity has a right to
consideration from the customer at an amount that corresponds directly with the value o the customer of the
entity’s performance completed to date, therefore the entity recognises the revenue to the extent to which it has
aright 10 invoice.

For subscriber promotions. such as discounted or free services during an introductory period. revenue is
recognised uniformly over the contractual period if the contract has substantive termination penalties. If a
contract docs not have substantive termination penalties. revenue is recognized only to the cxtent of the
discounted monthly fees charged to the subscriber, if any.

Certain upfront costs associated with contracts that have substantive termination penalties and a term of one
sear or more are recognised as assels and amortised to operating costs and expenses over the applicable period
benefited.
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Finance income
Finance income is recognised as interest accrucs according to the eftective interest method which uses the rate
that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount.

Share-based payments

The company is an indirect. wholly-owned subsidiary of Virgin Media Ine. and Liberiy Global ple. The
compamy has no share-bascd compensation plans. Employees of the group render services in exchange for
shares or rights over shares (equity-settled transactions) of Liberty Global ple common stock.

Share-based payments (continued)

I'he cost of equity-settled (ransactions with employees is measured by reference 1o the [air value at the date
which they are pranted. The [air value of options and share appreciation rights are determined using the Black-
Scholes model. The fair value of restricted share units is determined using cither the share price at the grant date
or the Monte Carlo model, depending on the conditions attached to the restricted share units being granted.
These transaction costs arc recognised, together with a corresponding increase in cither equity or amounts owed
to parent undertakings, over the scrvice period, or, if applicable, over the peried in which any performance
conditions are fulfilled, which ends on ihe date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (vesting date). The cumulative expense recognised for cquity settled transactions at each reporting date,
until the vesting date, reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the number ol awards that
are estimated to ultimately vest, in the opinion of management at that date and based on the best available
information.

No expense is recognised for awards thal do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional
upon a market vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition is satisfied. provided that all other performance conditions are satislied.

3 Segment information

The principal activity of the group is to facilitate the group's financing structure by implementing the group's
capital management policies, making and facililating external borrowings and holding investments in subsidiary
companics. The company's investments include substantially alt of the Virgin Media group’s trading operating
companies.

The Virgin Media group’s reporting segments are based on its method of internal reporiing 1o the Liberty
Global group and the information used by its chiel executive officer, who is the chief operating decision maker
{(*CODM™). w evaluate scgment performance and make capital allocation decisions.

It has been delermined that the Virgin Media group comprises a single operating segment. This reflects how the
CODM reviews the results of the group’s business based on revenue and profitability mecasures.

There is no material difference between the revenue presented to the CODM and the revenue of the Virgin
Media Finance PL.C group. Revenue for the group was £4.790.3 million (2019 - £4,835.7 million) and was
entirely derived from the sale of goods and services.

Geographic Locations
The group’s revenue by geographic location is set cut below:

Restated

2020 2019

£ million £ million

UK 4,730.5 4,770.9
Ireland 59.8 64.8
Total C 47903 4,833.7

Ireland represents revenue generated {rom the Irish television business.
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Group operating profit

‘This is stated after charging/ crediting):

Restated

2020 2019

£ million £ million

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 1) 953.0 9434
Depreciation of right of use assets (note 11) 351 40.0
Total depreciation 988.1 983.4
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 10} 174.5 193.1
Rent of premises 21.1 29.8
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1.3) o (3.3)
Cost of inventories recognised within cost of sales 192.9 208.0

Gain on sale of discontinued operations {note 22) (668.5) -

Auditor’s remuneration

‘The group paid the foltowing amounts to its auditor in respect of the audit of the financial statcments and for
other services provided to the group.

Fees paid to the auditor for audit and other services to the compamy are not disclosed in its individual accounts
as the group accounts are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.

I'ees pavable to the compary’s auditor and their associates for other services represents fees payable for
services in relation to other statutory filings or engagements that are required to be carried out by the greup's
auditor.

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Audit services:
Statutery audit services - audit of the parent company and group 0.5 0.3
financial stalements
I'ces payable to the compans's auditor and their associates for other services:
Statutory audit services - statutory accourts of the company's subsidiaries 0.2 0.2

0.7 0.7

Staff costs and directors’ emoluments
Staff costs

Included in wages and salaries is a total cxpense for sharc-based pavments of £53.7 million (2019 - £48.3
million), all of which arises from transactions accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions.

Further information on compensation of key management personnel is disclosed in the related party
transactions (note 29).
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(b}

{c)

Staff costs and directors’ emoluments (continued)

(a) Staff costs (continued)

Wages and salarics

Social sccurity costs

Pension costs - defined benefit scheme
Pension costs - defined contribution scheme
Total staff costs

Average staff numbers

The average monthly number of emplovees during the year was:

Consumer

Support, Technology and Tnnovation
Business

Network Expansion

Mobile

Tatal average staff numbers

Directors’ emoluments

There were no ather transactions with directors during the vear.

Directors' remuneration
Amounts receivable under long term incentive plans
Total remuncration

Company contributions under defined contribution pension plans

Highest paid director:
Remuneration (including awards receivable under long torm incentive plans)
Company contributions under defined contribution pension plans

Number of dircctors accruing benefits under defined contribution pension plans
Numbger of directors who exercised share options under schemes

operated by ultimate parent company

Number of dircctors with shares received or receivable under long

term incentive plans
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Restated

2020 2019
£ million £ million
611.3 564.2
64.3 52.8
1.7 1.6
29.5 26.1
7(46.8 644.7
Restated

2020 2019
No. No.
6,494 5,856
3,031 3,942
1,358 2,211
1,221 887

65 52
12,169 12,948
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
1.531 3,938
673 1,510
2,204 5,448
9 18
1,047 2,148
9 9

1,056 2,157
2020 2019
No. No.

1 3

4 3

4 3
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Finance income

Other finance income and interest on amounts due from group undertakings and related partics are recognised

using the effective interest rate method in accordance with IFRS 9 “financial instruments”.

Restated

2020 2019

£ million £ million

Interest on amounts due from related parties 276.9 283.8

Gain on forcign exchange 170.7 200.5
Gain on fair value of financial instrumnents 7.5 -

Other finance income 0.2 0.6

Interest on pension plans 2.3 2.3

['otal finance income 457.6 487.2

Finance costs

Interest payable is recognised using the effective interest rate methed.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, loss on extinguishment of debt was £138.2 million (2019 - £115.5
millien) and related to the redemption premium paid and the write off of deferred financing costs as a result of
the redemption of the senior notes. senior secured notes and senior credit facilitics from relinancing activitics

during the year (see note 17),

Restated
2020 2019
£ million £ million

Interest payable on:
Senior credit facility and vendor financing 243.2 275.7
Scnior noles 299.5 3525
Loss on derivative financial instruments 268.6 30.6
Loss on debt extinguishment 139.3 188.8
Loss on fair value of financial instruments - 20.8
Interest payable on leases 11.7 12.0
Unwinding of discounts on provisions 1.5 1.5
Other interest and fees 4.7 2.3
Total finance costs G68.5 8842
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(@) Tax expense an profit before tax

Current tax:
1K tuxes

Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Movement in deferred tax assets due 1o change in tax rate
Prior year adjustment

Total tax (benefit)expense in Group Income Statement

(h) Reconciliation of the total tax (henefit}y/expense in the Group Income Statement

2020 2019

£ million £ million
1.0 0.9

1.0 0.9

7.2 98.4
(182.4) (3.9)
0.5 7.6
(174.7) 102.1
(173.7) 103.0

The Group Income tax assessed for the year is lower than (2019 — lower than) the standard rate of corporation

tax in the UK ol 19% (2019 - 1994). The differences are explained below:

{Loss)/profit before income tax

{Loss)/profit multiplicd by the UK standard rate of corporation
tax of 19% (2019 - 19%)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Group relief surrendered/(claimed) without payment
Other
Movement in deferred tax assets due to change in tax rate
Adjustment refating to prior vears
Total tax (benefityexpense recognised in the Group Income Statement

fc) Reconciliation of the total tax expense

Tax recognised in the Group Income Statcment
Tax recognised in cquity
Total tax {benefit)expense
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Restated
2020 2019
£ million £ million
(189.4) 640.5
(36.00 121.7
1.3 6.0
43.3 (38.2)
(0.4) 9.2
(182.4) 3.9
0.5 8.2
(173.7) 103.0
2029 2019
£ million £ million
(173.7} 103.0
0.9 (1.0}
(172.8) 102.G
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(dt Recognised deferred tax

Recognised deferred tax assets at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were as follows:

2020 2019
£ million £ million
UK deferred tax asscts:

Depreciation and amortisation 1,501.6 1,370.1
Derivative instruments 37.6 18.2
Net operating losses 160.4 1574
Other 18.5 55
Total UK deferred tax assets 1,718.1 1.544.2

The group has determined it probable that in future it will generate sufficient pre-tax profits 1o utilisc
substantially all of its deferred tax assets.

In the 11 March 2020 Budget it was announced that the UK tax rate will remain at 19% and not reduce to 17%
from I April 2020. The 19% rate was substantively enacted in the Finance Bill 2020 on 17 March 2020. In the 3
March 2021 Budget, it was announced that the UK tax rate would increase to 23% from 1 April 2023,
substantively enacted on 24 May 2021, This will increase the group's fulure current tax charge accordingly and
increase the deferred tax asset by approximately £525.0 million.

The deferred tax assets have been calculated using the enacted rate of 19% as at the current balance sheet date
(2019 — 17%).
fe) Unrecognised deferred tax

Deferred tax assets in respect of the following amounts have not bheen recognised as there is nol currently
persuasive evidence that there will be suitable taxable profits against which these timing differences will

reversc.
2020 2019

£ million £ million

Net operating losses 192.3 479.0
Capital losses 12,104.7 12,104.6
Other timing differences 177.5 3140

124745  12.8976
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() Movement in deferred tax balances
Movements in deferred tax during the yvear:

1 January Recognised in Recognised in 31 December

2020 income equity 2020

£ million £ million £ million £ million
Depreciation and amortisation 1,370.1 I31.5 - 1,501.6
Derivative instruments 11.2 26.4 - 37.6
Net operating losses 157.4 3.0 - 160.4
Other 56 13.8 (0.9) 18.5
1,544.3 174.7 (0.9 1.718.1

Movernents in deferred tax during the prior vear:

1 January Recognised in Recognised in 31 December

2019 income equity 2019

£ million £ million £ million £ million
Depreciation znd amortisation 1,499.9 (129.8) - 1,370.1
Derivative instruments (6.7) 17.9 - 11.2
Nel operating losses 139.0 18.4 - 157.4
Other 13.1 (8.5) 1.0 5.6
1,6453 (102.0) 1.0 1,544.3

43



Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

10 Intangible assets

(a} Summary of intangibie assets

Goodwill IT Software Other Total

£ million £ million £ million £ million
Cost
At 1 Janvary 2019 23038 645.8 21.7 2.971.3
Impairment - (0.4) - (0.4)
Additions - §9.2 - 89.2
Disposals - (75.1) - (75.1)
l:ffcct of movement in exchange rates (12.6) - - (12.6)
At 31 December 2019 and | Jamuary 2020 22912 6395 0T 29724
Additions - 124.5 - 124.5
Disposals - (119.3) - (119.5)
On disposal of subsidiary o refated party (165.6) - - (165.6)
Effect of movement in exchange rates 119 - - 11.9
At 31 December 2020 21375 664.5 217 2.823.7
Accumulated ameortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2019 138.0 256.2 159 410.1
Amortisation charge - 192.0 1.1 193.1
Disposals - (75.1) - (75.1)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 138.0 3731 17.0 528.1
Amortisation charge - 173.7 0.8 174.5
Dispoesals - (118.2) - (118.2)
At 31 December 2020 1380 428.6 178 5844
Net book value
At 31 December 2020 1.999.5 2359 3.9 2,239.3
At 31 December 2019 2,153.2 286.4 4.7 24443
At | January 2019 2,1658 389.6 5.8 2,561.2

The amortisation charge has been recognised through administrative expenscs in the Group [ncome Statement.
th) Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives arc not amortised, but instead are tested for
impairment at least annually. Goodwill is allocated to reporting units, the assets of which are scparately
operated and monitored.

The group cvaluates the recos erable amount of the group’s reperting units, using a fair value less costs to sell
method. The group’s estimate of the recoverable amount is based primarily of observable EBITDA multiples
for recent transactions and publiclyv—raded peer companies, which are Ievel 2 inputs in the fair valuc hierarchy.
The group’s 2020 goodwill impairment assessment determined that fair value exceeded the carrying value of
both of the group’s reporting units and as a result concluded that no impairment to goodwill was required.
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11 Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 1 January 2019

I.easc opening balance adjustment
Additions

I:ffect of movement in exchange rates
Disposals

AL Devember 2019 and 1 Junuary 2020
Opening balanec adjusiment

Additions

Effect of movement in exchange rates
Disposals

On disposal of subsidiary to related party
At 31 December 2020

Depreciation

At 1 January 2019

Provided during the vear

Impairment relcase

Effect of movement in cxchange rates
Disposals

A1 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
Provided during the year

Effect of movement in exchange rates
Disposals

On disposal of subsidiary 1o related party
At 31 December 202¢)

Net book value
At 31 December 2020

Al 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2019

The group did not capitalise any borrowings costs during the year.

Included in 'Other” are the [ollowing net book valucs:

Frechold land and buildings
[L.easchold land and buildings
Leaschold improvements

Network
assets Other Total
£ million £ million £ million
14,431.7 1,439.5 15.871.2
10.5 136.6 147.1
1,005 4 187.8 1.193.2
(43.5) (5.6) {49.1)
(799.1) (43.5) (842.6)
14 6035.0) 1.714.8 16,319.8
1.9 (2.6) .7
870.6 141.3 1,011.9
42.3 6.4 48.7
(603.9) (157.0) (760.9)
(821.5) (97.4) (918.9)
14,094 4 1,605.5 15,699.9
9,454.2 993.9 10,4181
890.0 156.7 1.046.7
(424.7) - (424.7)
(23.1) 2.7 (25.8)
(779.3) (43.2) (822.3)
9.117.1 1,104.7 10,221.8
932.0 116.6 1,048.6
234 4.3 27.7
(599.8) {96.5) (696.3)
(452.1) (96.8) (548.9)
9,020.6 1,032.3 10,052.9
5.073.8 373.2 3,647.0
54879 610.1 6,098.0
4,977.5 445.6 5423.1
2020 2019
£ million £ million
331 344
284 29.1
49.8 59.6
111.3 123.1

The remaining assets included in “Other’ consist of furniwre and fixtures, computer equipment and motor

vehicles.
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12 Financial assets

Non-current

Restricted cash

Deferred financing costs

Derivative instruments (scc note 21)
Amounts owed by related parties

Current

Derivative instruments (sec note 21)
Restricted cash

Amounts owed by related parties

2020 2019

£ million £ million

39.7 22.0

14.4 16.2

279.7 430.9

5,900.2 49338
62310 54229

66.6 8§2.4

0.1 0.1

683.8 -
7525 825

Amounts owed by related partics are primarily in respect of loan notes receivable from Liberty Global Europe 2
Limited, and Newco Holdeo 5 Limited, both wholly owned subsidiaries of Liberty Global plc that sit outside of

the Virgin Media group.,

i) Notes receivable from Liberty Global Furope 2 Limited, which have an aggregate principal balance of
£4,798.7 million (2019: £4,926.4 million). These comprise ol principal amount outstanding of £685.8
million (2019: £nil) at a rate of 2.560% repayable in December 2021 and £4,758.1 million (2019: £4,926.4
million) at a rate ol 4.741% (subject to adjustment) repavable in July 2023, As at 31 December 2019

%. This was repaid in May 2020,

£1,5301.5 million was outstanding which incurred interest at a rate of 8.5

ii) Notes receivable from Newco Holdeo 5 Limited, which have a principal amount outstanding of £1,098.2

million (2019: £nil) at a ratc of 3.74% repayable in May 2027,

13 Trade and other receivables

Non-current
Prepayments and accrued income

Current

Trade receivables

Amounts owed by parent and group undertakings
Amounts owed by rclated parties

Prepayments and acerued income

2020 2019

£ million £ million
71.8 36.3

380.9 429.4

243 1.6

111 353

_ 187.0 184.6
603.3 650.9

Prepayments and accrued income classificd as non-current include long term telecommunications contract

assets with terms in exeess of one year.

Current amounts owed by both parent, group undertakings and related partics are unsecured and repayable on

demand.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. are generally on 30-90 day terms and are stated net of provision for
non-recoverability.  The group's trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment
and it was concluded that a provision for non-recoverability of £19.7 million (2019 - £19.5 million) was
required. The carrving value of trade receivables is considered to be a fair approximation of fair value,
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Trade and other receivables (continued)

The allowance for doubtful accounts is based wpon the group’s assessment of probable loss related to
uncollectible trade receivables. The group uses a number of factors in determining the allowance, including.
among other things, collection trends, prevailing and anticipated cconomic conditions and specific customer
credit risk. The allowance is maintained until cither receipt of payvment or the likelihood of collection is
considered Lo be remote.

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables were as follows:

£ million
At | Janvary 2019 19.6
Charge for the vear 23.2
Utilised (23.3)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 19.5
Charge for the year 221
Utilised (21.9)
At 31 December 2020 19.7
The ageing analvsis of trade receivables is as follows:
Neither
past due nor Balances past due
Total impaired <30 days 30-60days 60-90days =90 days
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ millien £ million
31 December 2020 380.9 3t0.6 19.4 13.4 10.8 20.7
31 December 2019 4294 3246 34.0 244 6.8 39.0
Inventories
2020 2019
£ million £ million
Goods for resale 23.5 309
Programming inventory 19.9 237
Total Inventory 43.4 54.6

Inventories are stated after provisions for impairment of £4.8 million (2019 - £6.7 million)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank eams interest at {loating raies based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents
including overdrawn cash book balances at 31 December 2020 was £19.3 million (2019 - £33.9 million).

2020 2019

£ million £ million

Cash at bank and in hand 19.2 33.9
Short-term deposits S

19.3 33.9
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Trade and other payables

2020 2019
£ million £ million

Non-current
Other long term payables 21.5 26.8
2020 2019
£ million £ million

Current

Trade payables 339.3 3543
VAT, payroll taxes and social security cosls 152.2 161.0
Imerest payable 138.8 133.2
Amounts owed Lo parent and group underlakings 77.5 522
Amounts owed to related party 172.9 48.9
Accruals and deferred income 808.9 812.3
1,689.6 1,591.9

Trade pavables arc non-interest bearing and generally repayable on terms of up to 60 days. Trade payables,
interest payable and amounts owed to group undertakings are {inancial liabilities which are excluded from note

17,
Amaounts owed te group undertakings and to refated parties are unsecured and repavable on demand.

Other long term payables consist of property and restructuring costs provisions.

Financial Liabilities

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Current

I.case labilities (see note 18) 31.9 335
Current instalments due on other debt 6.6 101.5
Derivative instruments (see note 21) 148.2 133.6
Vendor financing 1,966.2 1,762.7
2,152.9 2.031.3

Non-current
Lease liabilities (sce note 18) 172.2 188.0
Non-current instalments due on senior credit facility 3,967.6 3,908.4
Senior notes 1,119.5 1,187.3
Senior sccured notes 4,381.2 4.471.9
Nan-current instalments due on other debt 286.3 1429
Derivative instruments (sce note 21) 607.7 402.8
Vendor financing 89.0 72.4
10,623.5 10,463.5
Total financial liabilities 12,776.4 12,494.8

48



Virgin Media Finance PLC

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
fur the year ended 31 December 2020

17 Financial liabilities {continued)

Borrowings at 31 December were repayable as follows:

2020 2019
£ million £ million

Amounts falling duc:

Within one year 1.966.4 1.834.4
Inmorc than pne year but not more than five years 373.1 340.2
Inmore than five years 9.520.4 9,637.6

[1,859.6 11,782.2

Less: 1ssuc costs (43.2) {43.3)
Total borrowings 11,816.4 11,736.9
Financial liabilitics not classed as boerrowings 960.0 757.9
Total financial liabilities 12,776.4 12,494.8

Financial liabilitics not classed as borrowings include amounts payable 1o parent and group undertakings,
obligations under lcases, interest ratc swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps.

Loans repayvable in more than five y ears are as [ollows:

2020 2019

Loans repayable after 5 years: £ million £ million
Senior notes 1,127.1 1,057.2
Senior secured notes 4.400.1 4,490.8
Senior credit facilitics 3.981.6 4.014.6
Other debt 11.3 75.0
9.520.1 9,637.6

Vendor financing

The group enters into vendor financing arrangements to finance certain property and equipment additions and
operating costs, The amounts owed pursuant te these arrangements arc interest hearing and include VAT which
was paid on the group’s behalf by the vendor. Repayiments of vendor fnancing obligations are included in the
repayment of borrowings in the Group Cash I'low Statement. The weighted average cost of vendor financing

debtis 4.33% and is substantially due within 1 year.

Senior notes

Senior nofes consist of:

U.S. Dollar

5.25% senior notes due 2022 (principal at maturity $52 million)
4.875% senior notes due 2022 {principal al maturity $72 million)
6.00% scnior hotes due 2024 (principal at maturity $497 million})
5.75% senior hotes due 2025 (principal at maiurity $389 million)
5.0% senior notes due 2030 (principal at maturity $925 million)

Sterling
5.125% senior notes due 2022 (principal at maturity £44 million)

Euro
4.5% scnior notes dug 2025 (principal at maturity €460 million)
3.75% senior notes due 2030 (principal at maturity €500 million)

Less: 1ssue Costs
Total senior nolcs
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2020 2019

£ miilion £ million

- 388

- 4.0

- 3747

- 2031
679.3 -

679.3 760.6

- 441

- 44.1

- 3894
447.8 -

447.8 3894

(7.6) (6.8}
1,119.5 1.187.3
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In June 2020, Virgin Media Finance PLC issued 2030 senior notes with principal amounts of $675.0 million.
The net proceeds, together with the May 2020 procecds were used to redeem in full €460.0 million and $389.0
million outstanding principal amount of 2023 senior notes.

Virgin Media Finance PLC issued an additional 2030 senior notes with principal amounts of $230.0 million and
€500.0 million. The net proceeds from the issuance of these notes were used (1) o redeem in full $497 million
outstanding principal amounts of existing 2024 senior notes and $123.1 million and £44.1 million outstanding
principal amounts of existing 2022 senior notes and (2) for general corporate purposes.

The new sceured notes rank pari-passu with the group's existing secured notes and subject Lo certain exceptions,
share in the same guarantees and security granted in favour of its existing secured notes.

Senior secured notes
2020 2019
£ million £ million
Senior secured notes consist of:
U.S. Dollar
5.5% senior notes due 2026 (principal at maturity $750 millien) 549.2 565.6
3.5% senior notes due 2029 (principal at maturity $1,425 million) 1.030.4 1,081.9
4.5% senior notes due 2030 (principal at maturity $915 million) 674.1 -
C22737 L6475
Sterling
6.00% senior secured notes due 2025 {principal at maturity £521 million) - 340.1
5.00% senior secured notes due 2027 (principal at maturity £675 million) 675.0 675.0
4.875% senior secured notes due 2027 (principal at maturity £525 million) - 525.0
6.25% scnior secured notes due 2029 {principal al maturity £360 million) - 362.0
5.25% senior securcd nutes due 2029 (principal at maturity £340 million) 3411 3412
4.25% senior secured notes due 2030 (principal at maturity £400 million) - 400.0
4.25% senior secured notes due 2030 (principal at maturity £6335 million) 631.0 -
4.125% senior secured notes due 2030 (principal at maturity £480 million) 479.3 -
21264 2.843.3
[ess: 1ssue costs (18.9) (18.9)
Total senior secured notes 43812 4.471.9

In June 2020, Virgin Media Secured Finance PLC issued 2030 senior securcd notes with principal amounts of
$650 million and £450 million. The nct proceeds from the issuance of these notes were used (1) to redeem in
full £525 million outstanding principal amounts of cxisting 2027 senior secured notes, (2) 1o redecm in full
£360 million outstanding principal amounts of existing 2029 senior secured notes and (3) to redeem £80 million
of the £521 millien outstanding principal amount of existing 2023 senior secured notes.

In November 2020, Virgin Media Secured Finance PLC issued, via a private placement 2030 senior secured
notes with principal amounts of $263 million, £235 million and £30 million. The net proceeds from the issuance
of these notes were used (1) redeem in full £441 million outstanding principal amounts of existing 2025 senior
secured notes and (2) for general corporate purposes.
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Senior credit facility
2020 2019
The non-current instaiments due on the senior credil faciliny consists of £ million £ million

U.S. Dollar

VM Faeility K
LIBOR + 2.50% senior credit facility due 2026 (principal at maturity $3.400.0 - 2,482.1
million}

VM Facility N
LIBOR + 2.50% scnior credit facility due 2028 (principal at maturity $3,300.0 24121 -
million)

Eure

VM Facility O
FURIBOR + 2.50% senior credit {acility due 2029 (principal at 670.3 6334
maturity €750.0 million)

Sterling
VM Facility 1.
LIBOR+ 3.23% scnior credit facility due 2027 (principal at maturity £400.0 400.0 400.0
million})
VM Facility M
LIBOR+ 3.23% senior credit facility duc 2027 (principal at maturity £500.0 4992 499.1
million)
3,081.6 4,014.6
l.css: issue costs (14.0) (16.2)
Senior credit facility due after more than one vear 3.967.6 3.998.4
Total senior credit facility 3,967.6 o 3,998.4

The Senior Credit Facility requires that certain members ol the Virgin Media Group that gencrate not less than
80% of such group’s EBITDA (as defined in the Senior Credit Facility) in any financial year, guarantee the
paynient of all sums payable under the Senior Credit Facility and such group members are required to grant
first-ranking security over all or substantially all of their asscts to secure the payment of all sums payable. In
addition, the holding company of cach borrower must give a share pledge over its shares in such borrower.

At 31 December 2020, the senior secured credit facilities of the group included two multi currency revolving
credit facilities ("Revolving Facility™) Revolving Facility A is a multi currency revolving facilily maturing on
31 December 2021 with a maximum borrowing capacity equivalent to £30.0 million, and Revolving Facility B
is a mulli currency revolving facility maturing on 15 January 2024 with a maximum borrowing capacity
equivalent to £950.0 million,

In addition to mandatory prepayments which must be made for certain disposal proceeds (subjeet to certain de
minimis thresholds), the lenders may cancel their commitments and declare the loans due and payable afier 30
business days following the occurrence of a change of control in respeet of Virgin Media Investment Holdingy
Limited (2 wholly owned subsidiary of Virgin Media I'inance PLC), subject 10 certain exceptions.
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Financial liahilities (continued)

The Senior Credit Facility contains certain customary events of default. the occurrence of which, subject o
certain exceptions and materiality qualifications, would allow the lenders to (i) cancel the total commitments,
(i) accclerate all outstanding loans and terminate their commitments there under and/or (iii) declare that all or
part of the loans be pavable on demand. The Senior Credit Faceility containg certain representations and
warranties customary for facilities of this tvpe. which are subject to exceptions, baskets and materiality
qualifications.

The Senior Credit Iacility restricts the ability of certain members of the Virgin Media Group to, among other
things, (i) incur or guarantee certain financial indebtedness, (i) make certain disposals and acquisitions and (iif)
create certain sccurity interests over their assels, in each case, subject to carve-outs from such limitations,

The Senior Credin Facility requires the borrowers to observe certain affirmative undertakings or covenants,
which covenants are subject 1o materiality and other customary and agreed exceptions. In addition, the Senior
Credit Facility alse requires compliance with various financial covenants such as Senior Net Debt to Annualised
EBFIDA and Total Net Debt to Annualised EBITDA, each capitalised term as defined in the Scnior Credit
Facility.

In addition to customary default provisions, the Senior Credit Facility provides that amy event of default with
respect o indebtedness of £50.0 million or more in the aggregate of the company, and its subsidiaries is an
event of default under the Senior Credit Facility.

The Senior Credit Facility permits certain members of the Virgin Media Group to make certain distributions
and restricted payments to its parent company (and indircctly to Liberty Global) through loans, advances or
dividends subjeet 10 compliance with applicable covenants.

Restrictions
The agreements governing the senior notes, senior secured notes and the senior eredit facility significant!ly, and.
in some cases, abhsolutely restrict the group's ability and the ability of most of its subsidiarics to:

* incur or guaraniee additional indebledness;
s pay dividends or make other distributions, or redecm or repurchase equity interests or subordinated
obligations;

e make investments;

e sell assets. including shares in subsidiaries;

e create liens:

* cater into agreements that restrict the restricted subsidiaries’ ability 1o pay dividends, transfer asscts or

make intercompany loans;
* merge or consolidate or transfer substantially all of the group's asscts; and
s cnter into transactions with affiliates.

Leases

General
The group enters inte leases for network equipment, real estate and vehicles.

ROU assets

Right-of-usc assets related to Jeased properties that do not mect the definition of investment property are
presented as property, plant and cquipment.
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Land and Build
Network
Other

Additions to the right-ol-use assets during the 2020 financial vear were £29.0 mitlion (2019 - £47.0 million).

Amounts recognised in profit
The income statement shows the following amounts related to leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets:
f.and and Build

Network

Other

Interest expensc
Short-term lease cxpense

The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was £43.0 million (2019 - £48.0 million).

Lease liabilities
Maturitics of our lcase liabilitics as of December 31, 2020 are presented below:

Less than one vear

One to five years

More than five years

Total undiscounted lease liabilities
Tmpact of {inance expenses

I.ease liability included in the statement of financial position

Current
Neon current
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2020 2019
£ million £ million
- 1.4
10.4 8.2
168.1 181.5
178.5 201.1
2020 2019
£ million £ million
- 1.5
2.1 3.4
351 371
37.2 42.0
10.2 10.8
47.4 52.8
2020 2019
£ million £ million
41,1 46.3
108.2 131.7
191.5 197.6
340.8 3756
(136.7) (154.1)
204, 221.5
319 33.5
1722 188.0
204.1 221.5
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Property
related Other
costs provisions Total
£ million £ million £ million
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
Current 1.4 2.2 3.6
Non-current ) 122.1 2.9 124.9
1235 s.1 128.6
Established during the year 4.0 13.8 17.8
Used during the year (3.7} {13.3) (17.0)
Revisions in cashflow cstimates 0.6 - 0.6
Movement in discount rate (56.3) - (56.3)
On disposal of subsidiary 10 related party 2.9) - (2.9)
Al 31 December 2020 652 5.6 70.8
Analyscd as:
Current 1.6 1.1 2.7
Non-current 63.6 45 68.1
65.2 56 708

Property related costs
Property related costs expected 1o be incurred are mainly in relation to dilapidations costs on leaschold
properties. The majority of the costs are expected 1o be incurred over the next 25 vears.

Other provisions
Other provision elements mainly consist of National Insurance contributions on share options and restricted
stock unit grants and redundancy costs resulting (rom restructuring programmes.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprisc bank loans {scnior credit facility),
senior notes, senior secured notes, finance leases. vendor financing, trade pavables. hire purchase contracts and
loans made to parent, fellow group undertakings and related partics. With the exception ol trade pavables the
main purpose of the financial liabilitics is to raisc finance for the Virgin Media group's operations. The group
has various financial assets such as trade receivables and cash and short term deposits, which arise directly from
its operations.

The group is exposed 1o various market risks, including credit risk, foreign exchange rate risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. Market risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. As
some ol the group's indebtedness accrues interest at variable rates there is exposure to volatility in future cash
flows and carnings associated with variable interest payments.

Interest and principal obligations on some indebtedness are in U.S. dotlars and euros, As a result the group has
exposure 1o volatility in future cash {lows and carnings associated with changes in foreign exchange rates on
payments of interest and principal amounts on a portion of its indebledness.

The group has entered into various derivative instruments to manage interest rate risk, and foreign exchange
risk with respect to the U.S. dollar and euro, comprising of interest rate swaps, cross-currency interest rate
swaps and foreign currency forward contracts. The objective is 1o reduce the volatility of the group's cash flows
and carnings caused by changes in underlyving rates.

The main risks arising {rom the group'’s financial liabilitics are described below:

Interest rute risk

The group is subject to interest rate risk because it has substantial indebtedness at variable rates of interest. At
31 December 2020, before taking into account hedging instruments. interest is determined on a variable basis
on £3,981.6 miilion (2019 - £4,014.6 million) or 34% (2019 - 32%) of indebtedness. relating solely to amounts
drawn down on the senior credit facilities. The group aims to reduce the volatility of its cash flows and carnings
as a result of fluctuations in interest rates through the use of derivative financial instruments.
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Interest rate risk profile of financial assels
The group’s financial assets include cash on money market deposit at call. seven day and monthly rates, and
amounts owed by parent undertakings and related parties charged al variable interest rates.

Sensitivity analvsis of changes in inferest rates

Interest rate risks are presented by way of a sensitivity analysis in accordance with IFRS 7 ‘Firancial
Instruments: Disclosures’. 'These show the effects of changes in market intercst tates on interest payments,
interest income and cxpense, other components and, as appropriate, equity. The interest rate sensitivity analyses
are based on the lollowing assumptions:

e Changes in market interest rates of non-derivative financial instruments with fixed interest rates only
affect income if measured at fair value. As such, alt financial instruments with fixed interest rates that
are carried at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate risk as defined by TFRS 7.

e Changes in market interest rates affect the interest income or expense of non-derivative variable-
interest financial instruments, the interest payments of which are not designated as hedged items of
cash flow hedges against interest rate risks, As a consequence, they arc included in the calculation of
interest rate sensitivities.

e Changes in the markel interest rate ol inlerest rale derivatives (interest rate swaps and cross-currency
interest ratc swaps) that arc not part of a hedging relationship as set out in IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments’” alfect gains or losses on derivatives and are therefore taken into consideration in the
calculation of interest rate sensitivitics.

»  Foreign currency forward rate contracts are not subject to interest rate risks and therefore do not afieel
interest ratc scnsitivitics.

Based on debt at 31 December 2020, including amounts owed to and due from parent and group undertakings,
and taking into consideration hedging mstruments, a 0.25% movement in market interest rates would result in
an annual increase or decrease in the gross interest income/expense of £11.9 million (2019 - a 0.25% movement
in market interest rates would result in an annual increase or decrease in the gross inlerest income/expense of
£8.6 million). Movements in gross interest expense would be recognised in finance income and finance costs in
the Group Income Siatement.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

‘The group is also subject to foreign currency exchange risks because interest and principal obligations with
respect to a portion of its indebtedness is denominated in U.S. dollars and euros. To the extent that the pound
declines in value against the U.S. dollar and the euro, the effective cost of servicing ULS. dollar and curo
denominated debt will be higher. Changes in the exchange rate result in foreign currency gains or losses.

As of 31 December 2020 the group had £3.365.1 mitlion (2019 - £4.890.3 million), or 45% (2019 — 41%) of
external indebtedness, denominated in U.S. dollars and £1,118.1 million (2019 - £1,022.9 million), or 9% (2019
— 9%) of cxtemnal indebledness, denominated in euros (see noic 17). The group has a programme in place to
mitigate the risk of losses arising from adverse changes in foreign currency exchange rates which uses a number
of derivative financial instruments. When taking into consideration cross cumency interest rate swaps and
foreign currency forward rate contracts, the majority of external debt is hedged against forcign currency
exchange rate risk.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 the group had foreign currency gains of £170.7 million (2019 — gains of
£200.7 million).

The gains for the years cnded 31 December 2020 and 2019 were primarily due to the strengthening of pound
sterling relative w the U.S. dollar in respect of the ULS, dollar denominated debt issued by the group, partially
offset by the weakening of pound sterling relative to the euro in respect of curo denominated debt.
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Sensitivity analvsis of changes in foreign currency exchange rates

For the presentation of market risks, [FRS 7. Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ requires sensitivity analysis
that shows the effects of hypothetical changes of foreign currency exchange rates of refevant risk variables on
profit or loss and sharcholders’ equity. The periodic effects are determined by relating the hypothetical changes
in risk variables to the balance of financial instruments at the reporting date. It is assumed that the balance at the
reporting date is representative of the vear as a whole.

Currency risks are defined by 1FRS 7 as arising on account of financial instruments being denominated in a
currcncy other than the functional currency and being of a monetary nature. Relevant risk variables are
gencrally all non-functional currencies in which the group has financial liabilitics, excluding amounts due to
parcnt undertakings.

The currency sensitivity analysis is based on the following assumptions:

Major non-derivative monetary financial instruments (liquid asscts. receivables and finance lease liabilities) are
directly denominated in the functional currency. There are therefore no foreign exchange fluctuations in respect
of these instruments which have an effect on profit or loss or shareholders' equity. Interest income and expense
from financial instruments are also either recorded in the functional currency or transferred 10 the functional
currency using derivatives.

The group has a number of derivative instruments with various counterparties 10 manage ils exposure to
changes in fercign currency cxchange rates. Lxchange rate fluctuations, on which the financial instruments arc
based, affect gains or losses on derivalives in the finance income or finance costs lines, respectively, of the
Group Income Statement.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the pound sterling against
ULS. dollar and euro cxchange rates with all other variables remaining constant, of the group's profit before tax.
Due to foreign exchange translation of monctary assets and liabilities, the impact of translating the net assets of
foreign operations into sterling is excluded from the sensitivity analvsis:

Increase/ Effect on
decrease in profit/(loss)
exchange before tax
rates £ million
2020
Sterling/U.S. dollar +20% 456.6
Sterling/U.S. dollar -20% (2,028.6)
Sterling/euro +20% 359.8
Sterling/euro -20% {25.4)
2019
Sterling/11.5. dollar +20% 821.3
Sterling/U.S. dollar -20% (1,232.0}
Sterling/euro +20% 266.2
Sterling/curo -20% (116.3)

Liquidin risk and capital management

The company is a wholly owned subsidiary and its ultimate parent company is Liberty Global ple. Capital
management policies are operated at a Virgin Media group level by the management of Liberty Global ple. The
agreements that govern the Virgin Media group’s indebtedness set out financial maintenance tests and restrictive
covenants, and it is the policy of the Virgin Media group to maintain adequate headroom against these tests and
covenants.
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The group's business is capital intensive and the group is highly leveraged. The group has significant cash
requirements for operating costs, capital cxpenditure and interest expense. The level of the group's capital and
operating expenditurcs are affected by significant amounts of capital required to connect customers to the
network, expand and upprade the network and offer new scrvices. Cash on hand, together with cash from
operations and an undrawn credit facility, are expected to be sufficient for the group's cash requirements
through to 12 months from the date of this report. The group has significant scheduled repayments that may
need to be financed through means other than reliance on cash flow from operations. such as raising additional
debt or equity, refinancing the existing facility, possible loans from parent undertakings or related parties, sale
of asscts or other means. [t may not be possible to obtain adequate financing, or sell assets at all, or on
favourable terms, or the terms of the senior credit facility or senior notes may prevent the group from incurring
additional indebtedness or selling assels.

As of 31 December 2020 the group had £12.020.5 million of cxternal debt (ineluding finance leases, vendor
financing and net of deferred finanee costs) outstanding, compared to £11,958.4 million as of 31 December
2019 and cash and cash cquivalents of £19.3 million compared to £33.9 million at 31 December 2019.

The principal amount outstanding under the senior credit facility at 31 December 2020 was £3,981.6 million
(2019 - £4.014.6 million). The senior credit facility cemprises two term facilities denominated in pounds
sterling of £400.0 million and £499.0 million respectively (2019 — £400.0 million and £499.0 million). one term
facility denominated in U.S. dollar of £2.412.1 million (2019 - £2,482.0 millien), onc term facility denominated
in curo of £670.3 million (2019 - £633.4 million) and one revolving facility of £1,000.0 million (2019 -
£1,000.0 million). At 31 December 2020, £3,981.6 million (2019 - £4,014.6 million) of the term facilitics net of
issue costs had been drawn. The group had £675.0 million available of its revolving credit facilities for bank
guaraniees and siandby letiers of credit.

The group does not have any scheduled principal payments on its senior notes and senior credil facility until
2027. However, if the group was unable to meel repayment conditions or service these obligations through cash
flows {rom operations, then it would nced to sceure additional funding such as raising additional debt or equity,
refinancing the existing facility. selling assets or using other means. It may not be possible to obtain financing
or sell assets, al all or on favourable terms, or the group may be contraclually prevented by the terms of its
senior notes or senior ¢redit facility from incurring additional indebledness or selling assets.

A maturity analysis of (inancial liabilitics, outstanding at 31 December, showing the remaining contractual
undiscounted amounts pavable, including interest commitments, is shown below:

Less Greater than
than 1 vear 1to 5 years S vears Total
2020 £ million £ million £ million £ million
Senior credit facility, senior notes and scnior
sccured notes 487.0 2.096.8 10,898.2 13.482.0
Vendor financing 2,026.1 97.9 6.3 2,130.3
Finance lease and hire purchase contracts 41.1 108.1 191.4 340.6
Derivative contracts KE X 440.7 280.6 7559
2019
Senior credit facility, senior notes and senior
secured notes 5453 3.160.3 9,959.7 13,6653
Vendor financing 1,871.7 811 - 1,952.8
finance lease and hire purchase contracts 8.6 28.2 134.6 171.4
Derivative contracts 65.8 198.6 272.0 3364
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The above amounts exclude other [inancial liabilities, such as trade payvables, which are all repavable in less
than one ycar. Amounts owed to parent and group undertakings have also been excluded as they are repayable
on demand.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation. The group's financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit
risk consist primarily of cash, trade receivables and derivative contracts,

At 31 December 2020, the group had £19.3 million (2019 - £33.9 milliony in cash and cash cquivalents. These
cash and cash equivalents are on deposit with a number of major financial institutions and, as part of the group's
cash management process. regular evaluations of the credit standing of these institutions are performed using a
range of meirics. The group has not experienced any losses in cash balances and management do not believe it
is exposcd to any significant eredit risk on its cash balances.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade reccivables are limited because of the large number of
customers and their distribution across a wide geographic arca, The group performs credit evaluations of its
business customers™ financial condition and generally does not require collateral. No single group or customer
represents greater than 10% of total accounts receivable.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to derivative contracts are focused within a limited number of
international financial institutions with which the group transacts and relate only to derivatives with recorded
assct balances. The Liberty Global group performs regular reviews of the financial institutions with which it
transacts as o their credit worthiness and f{inancial condition. The group includes a credit risk adjustment based
upon the credit default swap spread in the valuation of derivative instruments, however, the group does not
expect there to be any significant non-performance risks associated with its counterparties.

Financial Instruments
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities - Financial Risk Management

The company and group have obligations in a combination of US dollars, curos, and pounds sterling at fixed
and variable interest rates. As a result the group is exposed to variability in its cash flows and earnings resulting
from changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.

The group’s objective in managing its exposure to interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates is to
decrease the volatility of its earnings and cash flows caused by changes in the underlying rates. The group has
cstablished policies and procedures to govern these exposures and has cntered into derivative financial
instruments including interest rate swaps, cross-currency interest rate swaps and foreign currency forward rate
contracts.  Subsidiaries of Virgin Media Finance PLC hold financial instrumems which hedge the foreign
currency risk of debt issued by its fellow group undertakings. It is the group's policy not to enter into derivative
financial instruments for speculative trading purposes, nor to enter into derivative financial instruments with a
level of complexity or with a risk that is greater than the exposurc 1o be managed. The amounts below include
amounts relating to short term as well as long term payables.

With the exception of & limited number of interest rate swaps, the group has elected not to designate derivative
instruments as accounting hedges, although these remain economic hedges.
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Financial Instruments {continued)

The fair values of derivative financial instruments recognised in the Group Balance Sheet are as {ollows:

Tncluded within current assets:

Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rale swaps

Derivatives nut designated as hedges
Interest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rate swaps
Forcign Currency Forward Contract

Included within non-current assets:
Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rate swaps
Derivatives not designated as hedges
Interest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rate swaps

Included within current liabilities:
Perivatives not designated as hedges
Interest rale swaps
Cross-currency inlerest rate swaps
Foreign Currency Forward Contract

Included within non-current liabilities:
Derivatives not designated as hedyes
Interest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rate swaps

2020 2019
£ million £ million
5.2 17.7
- 5.8
38.4 27.6
22.6 31.3
0.4 -
66.6 82.4
- 8.9
- 376
110.7 73.5
169.0 3109
279.7 430.9
932 126.1
53.1 7.0
1.9 0.5
148.2 133.6
295.7 241.0
312.0 L Ibl 8
607.7 402.8

Cross-currency interest rate swaps - hedging the principal and interest payments of senior notes and

senior credit facility

The terms of the group’s outstanding cross-currency interest rate swaps, which are used to mitigate the interest
and foreign exchange rate risks relating to the pound sterling value of principal and interest payments on U8,
dollar and curo denominated senior notes and senior secured notes at 31 December 2020 were as follows:

Final maturity
date of hedges

January 2021 - January 2028
January 2025

July 2028

July 2028

Hedge type

Not designated
Not designated
Not designated
Not designated

59

Notional
amount

due from
counterparty
million
$11,499.0
£1.005.5
$166.6

€500.0

Notional
amount
due to
counterparty
million
£8.699.5
$1,445.0
€150.0
£445.6

Weighted
average
remaining
life

5.5

4.1

7.5

7.5
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Interest rate swaps - hedging of interest rate sensitive obligations

As of 31 December 2020, the group had outstanding interest rate swap agreements 1o manage the exposure to
variability in future cash flows on the interest payments associated with iis senior credit facility which accrues
at variable rates based on LIBOR. The group has also entered into interest rate swap agreements to manage its
exposure to changes in the [air value of certain debt obligations due to interest rate fluctuations. The interest
rate swaps allow the group to receive or pay interest based on six month LIBOR or fixed rates in exchange for
payments or receipts of interest at six month [LIBOR or fixed rates.

The terms of the group’s outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2020 were as follows:

Final maturity

date of hedge Hedge type Pay fixed rate Receive fixed rate
Weighted Weighted
Notional average Netional average
million remaining life million remaining life
January 2021 - Janaury 2028  Not designated £14.402.4 3.8 £3,530.8 4.2

The notional amounts of multiple derivative instruments that mature within the same calendar month are shown
in aggregate,

Interest rate swaptions

The group has entered into various inlerest rate swap oplions {swaptions), which give the right, but no
obligation, 10 enter into certain interest rate swap contracts at set dates in the future, with each such contract
having a lifc of no more than three years. Al the transaction date, the strike rate of each of these contacts was

above the corresponding market rate.

The terms of outstanding interest rate swap option contracts at 31 December 2020 were as follows:

Notional Weighted Weighted

amount Underlying average option average

due from swap expiration strike

Final maturity date Hedge type counterparty currency period rate
million Yo

October 2022 - January 2027  Not designated £1,936.2 GBP 0.2 241

Basis Swaps

The terms of outstanding basis swap contracts at 31 December 2020 were as follows:

Weighted

average

Notional remaining

Final maturity date Hedge type amount life
million

July 2021 Not designated £900.0 0.3

Julv 2021 Not designated $3,300.0 0.5
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Foreign currency forward options and forward contracts

The group has entered into external foreign currency forward options and foreign currency forward contracts in
order to manage foreign currency exposure risk with respect to Indian rupee (INR),

Foreign currency forward options
The following foreipn cwrrency forward options with a third party were In place at 31 December 2020:

Exchange currency Notional amount
million
Indian rupec £0.5

Foreign currency forward contracts
fhe following foreign currency forward contracts with a related party were in place at 31 December 2020:

Maturity dates Currency purchase forward Currency sold forward

milllion milllion
January 2021 - December 2021 $43.7 £33.9
January 2021 - December 2021 €499 £44.6
January 2021 - December 2021 £39 $5.2

Interest Rate Caps and Floors

From time 1o time, we enter into interest rate cap and floor agreements. Purchased interest rate caps lock in a
maximum interest rate if variable rates rise. but also allow our company 10 benefit from declines in market
rates. Purchased interest rate floors protect us from interest rates falling below a certain level, generally to
match a floating rate tloor on a debt instrument. At December 31, 2020, the pound sterling equivalent notional
amounts of our purchased intcrest rate caps and floors were £1,3568. 4million and £3.317.4 million, respectively.

Cash flow hedges

The group has clected not 1o designate derivative instruments as accounting hedges, although these remain
economic hedges. The group has recognised effective portion of gains on losses in the unrcalised gains and
losses in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income as result of historic derivative instruments that were
designated as cash flow hedges and hedges of commercial operational contracts.

Changes in the fair values of derivative instruments are recorded as gains or losses on derivative instruments in
the Group Income Stalement in the period in which they occur. The following table presents movements in
Other Comprehensive Income related 1o cash flow hedges for the year ended 31 December 2020:

Cross
currency
interest rate
Total swaps Tax effect
£ million £ million £ million
Balance at 31 December 2019 10.7 (10.2) 209
Amounts recognised in Statement of
Comprehensive Income reclassified to earnings 4.7 AT -
Balance at 31 December 2020 15.4 ~{5.5) 20.9

Included within amounts reclassified to carnings is £4.7 million (2019 - £5.4 million) of nct losses that have
been reeyeled from the cash flow hedge reserve through the income statement in respect of swaps for which
cither designation was revoked, or the hedged instrument was settled as part of reflinancing activitics.
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Fair value hedges
For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as fair value accounting hedges, the gain or loss on
derivatives is recognised in the Group Tncome Statement in the period in which they oceur, together with any
changges in the fair valuc of the hedged debt obligations duc to changes in the hedged risks.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Sct out below s a comparison by category of carrying values and fair values ol the group's financial asscts and
financial liabilities. where diffcrent, as at 31 December:

2020 2020 2019 2019
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
£ million £ million £ million £ milkion

Senior credit facility (3.967.6) (3.961.2) (3.998.4) (4,126.8)
5.25% U.S. dollar senior notes due 2022 - - (38.9) (39.7)
4.875% 118, dollar senior notes due 2022 - - (34.1) (55.0)
3.125% pound sterling senior notes due 2022 - - (44.2) (44.0)
6% 11.S. dollar scrior notes due 2024 - - (372.6) (387.3)
4.5% curo scnior notes due 2023 - - (380.7) (400.7)
5.75% ULS. dollor senior notes due 2023 - - (291.4) (302.5)
6.0% pound slerling senior secured notes due 2025 - - (539.9) (575.6)
5.5% L1.S. dollar senior secured notes due 2026 (546.3) (572.7) (361.7} (595.9)
+4.875% pound sterling senior secured notes due 2027 - - (323.6) (349.9)
5.0% pourd sterling senior secured notes duc 2027 (672.5) (709.9) (672.1) (717.6)
6.25% pound sterling senior sceured notes due 2029 - - (360.7) (385.3)
5.50% 1.8 dollar senior secured notes due 2029 (1,0146.4) (11342} (1,077.3) (E.142.4)
5.25% pound sterling senior secured notes duc 2029 (340.1} (367.9) (340.1) (368.9)
4.25% pound sterling senior sccured notes due 2030 {627.3) (655.7) (396.4) (408.5)
4.530% 1.5 dollar senior secured notes duc 2030 (671.8) (704.1) - -

4.125% pound sterling senior secured notes due 2030 {477.1} (490.9) - -

5.0% U.S dollar senior notes duc 2030 (674.3) (707.9 - -

3.75% curo scnior notes due 2030 {(445.3} (437.1) - -

The carrying values of amounts not listed above approximate their fair values.

The group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

Level I Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics.

Level 2 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilitics: or
Unadjusted quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active: or
Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or lability.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,

The group endeaveurs to utilise the best available information in measuring fair valuc. Financial assets and

liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.
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As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the financial instruments held by the group is as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ million £ million £ million £ million
Financial assets at fair value
Cash, short term deposits and restricted cash 59.0 - - 59.0
Cross-currency intcrest rate swaps - 191.6 - 191.6
Interest rate swaps - 154.3 - 1543
Foreign currency forward rate contracts - 04 - 0.4
59.0 3463 - 4053
Financial liabilities at fair value
Senior credit facility 3,961.2 - - 3.961.2
Scnior notes 1.163.0 - - 1,165.0
Scnior secured notes 46354 - - 46354
Cross-currency interest rate swaps - 365.1 - 3651
Interest rate swaps - 370.9 18.0 3R89
Foreign currency forward rate contracts - 1.9 - 1.9
9,761.6 737.9 18.0 10,517.5

In estimating the fair value of other financial instruments, the group used the following metheds and
assumptions:

Cush and short term deposiis, and restricted cash: The carrying amounts reported in the Group Balance Sheet
approximate fair value duc to the short maturity and nature of these financial instruments,

Derivative financial insiriments:  As a resull of the group's financing activitics, it is exposed to market risks
from changes in inlerest and foreign currency exchange rates, which may adversely allect its operating results
and financial position. When deemed appropriate, the group minimises risks from interest and foreign currency
exchange rate {luctvations through the use of derivalive financial instruments. The forcign currency forward
rate contracts, inlerest rate swaps {excluding swaptions) and cross-currency interest rate swaps are valued using
broker quotations, or markel transactions in either the listed or over-the counter markets. adjusted for non-
performance risk. As such, these derivative instruments are classified within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
Due to the lack of Level 2 inputs for the swaption valuations, the group believe these valuations fall under
Level 3 of the [air value hicrarchy.

Senior noles, senior secured noles and senior credit facility. The fair valucs of the senior credit facility, scnior
notes and senior sceured notes in the above table are based on the quoted market prices in active markets for the
underlying third party debt and incorporate non-performance risk. Accordingly, the inputs used 0 value the
senior noles and senior securcd notes are classified within level 1 of the fair value hicrarchy.

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

63



Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

22 Discontinued operation

On 30 November 2020 the group sold its Irish subsidiary UPC Broadband Treland Limited to another subsidiary of
Liberty Global, Newco Holdeo 5 Limited, that is outside of the Virgin Media Group. This has been reported in the
current vear as a discontinued operation. Financial information relating to the discontinued operation for the period
o the date of disposal is set out below.

Financial performance and cash flow information

The financial information prescnted is for the 11 month period ended 30 November 2020 (2020 column) and the
vear ended 31 December 2019 (2019 column).

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Revenuc 308.2 3325
Expenses (299.8) (292.9)
Profit before income 1ax 8.4 39.6
Income 1ax expense - -
Profit after income tax e 84 39.6
Gain on sale 668.5 -
Profit from discontinued operation 6760.9 39.6
Exchange difference on translation (9.4) (9.3)
Other comprehensive income from discontinued operation (9.4) (9.5)

For cash flow information in relation to the discontinued operation please sce the Group Cash Flow Statement
on page 26.

Details of the sale of the subsidiary

2020
£ million
Consideration receivable:

Cash 478.8
Carrying amounts of net liabilities sold {189.7)
Gain on sale before income tax 668.5
Income tax on gain -
Giain on sale after tax 668.5
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Discontinued operation (continued)
The carrving amounts of assets and liabilities as at the datc of sale (30 November 2020) werce:

30 November 2020

£ million
Intangible assets 163.6
Property, plant and equipment 369.8
Onher long term assets 3.0
Inventory 2.5
Trade and other reccivables 41.1
Cash 13.3
Total assets 595.3
Trade and other payables (120.0)
Pension liability (6.1)
Other long term pavables (658.9)
Net liabilities (189.7
Equity share capital
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Allotted, called up and fulb paid:
76,184 (2019 - 76,184) ordinary shares ol £1 each 76 76

Share-based payments

The group’s employees are entitled to partake in Liberty Global ple share-based schemes. These share schemes
consist of stock options and performance plans including stock appreciation rights (“SARs™), performance-
based share appreciation rights (“PSARs™), restricted stock, restricted stock units ("RSUs™) and performance
share units (“PSUs™). The schemes provide share based compensation to individuals under the conditions
describe below. The grant date fair values for options, share appreciation rights (SARs) and performance-based
share appreciation rights (PSARS) are estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, and the grant
date fair values for restricted share units (RSUs) and performance-based restricted share units (PSUs) are based
upon the closing sharc price of Liberty Global ordinary shares on the date of grant. We caleulate the expected
life of options and SARs granted by Liberty Global to employees based on historical exercise trends, The
arrangements are cquity settled with the employees. Liberty Global recharges the group for share schemes made
available 1o the group employecs.

Full detailed information on the group’s share based payments are disclosed in the financial statements of
Virgin Media Inc. which are available on Liberty Global’s website at www liberty global.com.

The income statement charge for share based payments for the year was £51.6 million (2019: £45.1 million).
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Liberty Global Share Incentive Plans

As of December 31, 2020, Tiberly Global is authorized o grant incentive awards under the 1iberty Global 2014
Incentive Plan. Generally, the compensation committee of Liberty Global’s board of directors may grant non-
qualified share options, SARs, restricted shares, RSUs, cash awards. performance awards or any combination of
the foregoing (collectively, awards), Ordinary shares issuable pursvant to awards made under these incentive
plans will be made available from ¢ither authorized but unissued shares or shares that have been issued but
reacquired by Liberty Global. Awards may be granted at or above fair value in any elass of ordinary shares. The
maximum number of Liberty Global shares with respect to which awards may be issucd nnder the Liberty
Global 2014 Tncentive Plan is 155 million (of which no mere than 50.25 million shares may consist of Class
B ordinary sharcs), subject to anti-dilution and other adjustment provisions in the respective plan, As of
December 31, 2020, the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan had 60,799,181 ordinary shares available for grant.

Awards (other than performance-based awards) under the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan generally {i) vest
(a) prior 10 2020, 12.53% on the six month anniversary of the grant dale and then at a rate of 6.25% each quarter
thercaller and (b} commencing in 2020, annually over a threc-year period and (ii) expire (1) prior 1o 2019,
seven years aller the grant date and (2) commencing in 2019, 10 years alter the grant date, RSUs vest on the
daic of'the first annual general meeting of Liberty Global sharcholders following the grant date.

Liberty Global Performance Awards

The following is @ summary of the material terms and conditions with respect to Liberty Global’s performance-
based awards for certain exccutive officers and key employees for which awards were granted under the Liberts
Global Incentive Plan and the Virgin Media Incentive Plan.

Liberty Global PSUs

In Aprit 2019, the compensation commitiee of Liberty Global’s board of directors approved the grant of PSUs
1o executive officers and key emplovees (the 2019 PSUs) pursuant 1o a performance plan that is based on the
achievement of a specified OCF CAGR during the two-year period ending December 31, 2020. The 2019 PSUs
include over- and under-perfoermance payout opportunities should the OCE CAGR exceed or fail to meet the
target, as applicable. A performance range of 50% to 125% of the target OCF CAGR will gencrally result in
award recipients carning 50% to 150% of their target 2019 PSUs, subject to reduction or forfeiture based on
individual performance. The carned 2019 PSUs will vest 50% on April 1, 2021 and 50% on Oclober 1, 2021,

During 2018, the compensation committee of Liberty Global's board of directors approved the grant of PSUs 1o
exgeutive officers and key emplovees (the 2018 PSUs) pursuant to a performance plan that is based on the
achievement of a specified OCI CAGR during the two-vear period that ended on December 31, 2019, The 2018
PSUs include over- and under performance payout opportunitics should the OCF CAGR exceed or fail to meet
the target, as applicable. A performance range of 30% 10 125% of the target OCY CAGR will generally result in
award recipients earning 50% to 150% of their target 2018 PSUs, subjeet to reduction or forfeiture based on
individual performance. The carned 2018 PSUs will vest 50% on each of April 1, 2020 and 50% on October 1,
2020. The target OCF CAGR for the 2018 PSUs was determined on October 26, 2018 and, accordingly,
associaled compensation expense has been recognized prospectively from that date.

In February 2016, Liberty Global’s compensation committee approved the grant of PSUs 1o executive officers
and key employees (the 2016 PSUs). The performance plan for the 2016 PSUs covercd a three-year period that
ended on December 31, 2018 and included a pecformance target based on the achievement of a specified
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) in an Adjusted EBITIDA metric (as defired in the applicable underlying
agreement). The performance target was adjusted for events such as acquisitions, dispesitions and changes in
foreign currency exchange raics thar affect comparabiltity (Adjusied EBITDA CAGR). The 2016 PSUs, as
adjusted through the 2017 Award Modification, required delivery of an Adjusted EBITDA CAGR of 6.0%
during the three-year performance period for Liberty Global depending on the respective class of shares
underlying the award. Participants earned 82.3% of their targeted awards under the 2016 PSUs. which vested
50% on cach of April 1. 2019 and October 1, 2019.
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Share-based payments (continued)

Liberty Global Challenge Performance Awards

Effective 24 Junc 2013, Liberty Global’s compensation committee approved the Challenge Perlormance
Awards, which consisted solely of PSARs for Liberty Global’s senior executive officers and a combination of
PSARs and PSUs for other executive officers and key employees. Each PSU represented the right to receive
one Liberty Global or LiLAC Class A or Class C ordinary share, as applicable. The performance criteria for the
Challenge Performance Awards was based on the participant’s performance and achievement of individual
goals in cach of the years 2013, 2014 and 20135. As a result of satisfying perlormance conditions. 100% of the
then outstanding Challenge Performance Awards vested and became fully exercisable on 24 June 2016. The
PSARs have a term of seven years and base prices cqual to the respective market closing prices of the
applicable elass on the grant date

Firgin Media Stock Incentive Plans

Equity awards were granted 10 certain of the group’s employees, prior o Liberty Global's acquisition of Virgin
Media in June 2013, under certain incentive plans maintained and administered by the group and no new grants
will be made under these incentive plans. The equity awards granted include stock options, restricted shares,
RSUs and performance awards. Awards under the VM Incentive Plan have a 10-year term and become fully
exercisable within five years of continued employment,

Reserves

Fquiny share capital
The balance classificd as share capital represents the nominal value on issuc of the company's equity share
capital, comprising £1 ordinary shares.

Share premium account
Share premium represents the amount of consideration received for the company's cquity share capital in excess
of the nominal value of shares issued.

Other capital reserves comprising merger reserve and capital contributions
The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired through group reorganisations have given rise Lo the
requirement to make adjustments on consolidation in the merger reserve.

Unrealised gains and losses
This reserve records the portion of gain or loss on hedging instruments that arc determined to be effective
hedges, and the exchange differences on retranslation of foreign operations.

Foreign currency translation reserve
This reserve records the gain or loss on the retranslation of subsidiary undertakings with functional currencies

other than pound sterling.

Retained earnings
This reserve records all current and prior period retained profit and losses.

Capital commitments

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Amounts contracted for but not provided in the accounts 431.2 331.7
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Contingencies

On 9 March 2014, the UK government announced a change in legislation with respect to the charging of VAT
in connection with prompt payment discounts such as those that the group offer to fixed-line telephony
customers. This change, which ook effect on | May 2014, impacted the group and some of its competitors. The
UK tax authority issued a decision in the fourth quarter of 2015 challenging the group’s application of the
prompt payment discount rules prior to the 1 May 2014 change in legislation. The group appealed this decision.
As part of the appeal process, the proup were required to make aggregate payments of £67.0 million,
comprising of the challenged amount of £63.7 million (which the group paid during the fourth quarter of 2015)
and related interest of £3.3 million (which the group paid during the first quarter of 2016). No provision was
recorded by the group at that time as the likelihood of loss was not considered 10 be probable. The aggregate
amount paid docs not include penalties, which could be significant in the event that penalties were to be
assessed. In September 2018, the court rejected the group’s appeal and ruled in favour of the UK tax authority.
Accordingly, during the third quarter o 2018, the group recorded a provision for litigation of £63.7 million and
related interest expense of £3.3 million in the group’s income statement. The First Tier Tribunal gave
permission to appeal 10 the Upper ribunal and the group submitted grounds for appeal on 22 February 2019,
The group subscquently lost the appcal at the Upper Tribunal and in October 2020 our request to further appeal
the case was denied by the Court of Appeal.

Pension and other post-retirement benefits

The group operates two defined benefit schemes in the UK, the NTI. Pension Plan and the 1999 ntl Pension
Scheme which provide both pensions in retirement and death bencfits to members. Pension benelits are related
to the members” final salary at retirement and their length of service.

As at 31 December 2019, the group also held a defined benefit scheme in Ireland, Virgin Media Ireland 1.imited
Defined Benefit Plan, which was disposed of with the sale ol its subsidiary UPC Broadband Ircland Limited on
30 November 2020 (see note 22).

Defined contribution plans

The group contributes 1o the Virgin Media sponsored group personmal pension plans of eligible employees.
Contributions are charged to the Group Income Statement as they become payable, in accordance with the rules
of the plans.

Contributions to the defined contribution plans during the period were £29.5 million (2019 - £27.6 million).
The amount of outstanding contributions at 31 December 2020 included within current liabilities was £4.2
million (2019 - £4.1 million}.

Defined benefit plans
‘The group recognises any actuarial gains and tosses in cach peried in the Group Statement of Comprchensive
Income,

= 1999 ntl Pension Scheme

A subsidiary, Virgin Media Limited, operates a funded pension plan providing defined benefits (~1999 nil
Pension Plan”). The plan has never been opened 10 new entrants cxcept when the plan began and subsequently
on 31 May 2007, on both occasions new members were transferred from other existing plans. The Plan was
closed to future accrual on 31 January 2014, The asscts of the plan are held separately from those of the
company, being invested in units of cxempt unit trusts. The plan is funded by the payment of contributions to
separately administered trust funds. The pension costs are determined with the advice of independent qualified
actuaries on the basis of triennial valuations using the projected unit credit method.

* NTL Pension Plan

A subsidiary, Virgin Media Limited. operates a funded pension plan providing defined benefits ("NTL Pension
Plan™). The pension plan was closed te new entrants as of 6 April 1998, 'The Plan was closed to futare accrual
on 31 January 2014. The assets of the plan are held scparately from those of the company, in an independently
administered trust. The plan is funded by the payment of contributions to this separately administered trust.
The pension costs are determined with the advice of independent qualified actuaries on the basis of triennial
valuations using the projected unit credit method.

The plans’ asscts are measured at fair value. The plans’ liabilities are measured using the projected unit method
and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond.
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28 Pension and other post-retirement benefits (continued)

The table below provides summary information on the group’s defined benefit plans:

Projccted benefit obligation
I'air valuc of plan asscts
Net asset

Net periodic pension cost
Net defined benefit asset represented by:

Net defined benelit Liability
Net defined benchit asset

Movements in the defined benefit asscts and liabilities are as follows:

Defined benefit obligation

2020
£ million

UK UK

Balance at 1 January
included in income
statement

Current admin/service cost - -
Past service cost - -
Interest (cost)/income (11.4)

Included in OCT

Actuarial (loss)/gain arising from:
Changes in demographic
assumplions

Changges in financial

assumplions

Experience adjustments (2.4)
Return on plan assets

(76.0)

cxcluding interest income

Other

Contributions paid by the
cmployer

Liffects of movements in
exchange rates

Benefits paid 31.9 24.0

Balance at 31 December

(581.0) (530.0)

(14.6)

34 (0.6)

(60.5)

(635.5) (581.0)

2020
£ million
Ireland UK
(33.1; 6674
- (1.7}
(0.7 13.5
{4.9) -
0.2 -
- 78.0
- 0.9
1.9 -
0.6 (30.2)
{36.0) 727.9

Fair value of plan assets

2020 2019
£ million £ million
(635.5) (617.0)
e 6935
924 78.5
0.8 0.9
. (7.9)
92.4 86.4
924 78.5

Net defined benefit

asset/(liability)
2019 2020 2019

£ million £ million £ million
UK Ireland UK UK  TIreland
6197 253 £6.4 89.7 {7.8)

(1.6) - (1.7) (1.6) -
17.0 0.5 2. 2.4 (0.2}

- - 34 (0.6) -
- - (76.0)  (60.5) (4.9}
- - (2.4) 0.7 0.2
53.8 2.8 78.0 53.8 2.8
0.9 1.7 0.9 0.9 1.7
R (1.6) - - 0.3

(22.4)  ((1.6) 1.7 1.6 -
667.4 28.1 92.4 86.4 (7.9)

1999 ntl Pension Scheme and NTL. Pension Plan have been disclosed within the “UK™ figures.
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28 FPension and other post-retirement benefits (continued)
Virgin Media Ireland [imited Defined Benefit Plan is shown within the “Ireland” figures in 2019, this was
disposed of with the sale of the group’s subsidiary UPC Broadband Ireland Limited on 30 November 2020 (sce
note 22).

The group’s pension plan weighted-as erage assct allocations by asset catcgory at 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019 were as follows:

2020 UK long
term rate
of return UK total
£ million
Equities 4.7% 198.5
Property 4.7% 1.9
Corporatc bonds 1.2% 3397
Government bonds 0.7% 57.1
Hedge funds 4.2% 0.1
[nsurance policy (buy-in) 1.2% 195.1
Cash and other 0.7% (64.3)
Total market value of assets ) 7279
Present value of plan liabilities (635.3)
Net pension asset 92.4
2019 [reland
UK long long term
term rate rate of
of return UK total return Ireland total
£ million £ million
Equitics 5.3% 817 2.2% 10.8
Property 5.3% 23 - -
Corporate bonds 2.0% 196.7 2.2% 13.2
Government bonds 1.3% 69.0 - -
Fedge funds 1.8% 892 - -
Insurance policy (buy-in) 2.0% 182.5 -
Cash and other 1.3% 16.0 2.2% 4.1
Total market value of assets T 6674 281
Present value of plan liabilitics (581.0) (36.0)
Net pension asset/(liability) 86.4 ' (7.9)
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28 Pension and other post-retirement benefits (continued)
The trustees of NTL Pension Plan purchased an insurance contract that will pay an income stream to the plan
which is expected to match all future cash cutflows in respect of certain liabilitics. The fair value of this
insurance contract is presented as an asset of the plan and is measured based on the future cash flows to be

received under the contract discounted using the same discount rate used to measure the associated liabilitics.

Actuarial assum ptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date {expressed as weighted averages):

The weighted-average assumptions used (o determine net periodic benefit costs were as follows:

2020 2019

UK UK  Ireland
Discount rate 1.2% 2.0% 1.2%
Future salary increases 2.9%, 200, (0%

The assumptions relating 1o longevily underlying the pension liabilitics at the balance sheet date are based on
standard actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements in longevity. The
assumplions are equivalent to expecting a 60-vear old to live for a number of years as {oflows:

UK
2020 2019
Currem pensioner aged 60 {male) 27.2 27.3
Current pensioner aged 60 (female) 201 29.1
I'uture retiree upon reaching 60 (male) 28.7 28.8
Future retiree upon reaching 60 (female) 30.6 30.6

Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the assumptions set out above. The following
table summarises how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have
increased/(decreased) as a result of a change in the respective assumptions by 0.23 percent.

2020 2019

UK UK Ireland
Discount rate (26.5) (24.1) (1.4
Inflation 2.6 23 6.4

In valuing the assets of the UK pension fund at 31 December 2020, mortality assumptions have been madce as
indicated above. I life expectancy had been changed to assume that all members of the fund lived lor one year
longer, the value of the reported liabilities at 31 December 2020 would have increased by £28.6 million before
deferred tax for the UK pensions.

The above sensitivities are based on the average duration of the benefit obligation determined at the date of the
last fult actuarial valuation at 31 December 2020 and are applied o adjust the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period for the assumptions concerned. Whilst the analvsis does not take account of the full
distribution of cash {lows expected under the plan, it docs provide an approximation to the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown.

Funding
The group expects to contribute £2.5 million to the defined benefit pension plans in 2021.
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29 Related party transactions

During the year, the group entered into transactions in the ordinary course of business with other related parties.
Transactions entered into during the year, and trading balances outstanding at 3t December with other related
partics. are as follows:

Services Interest Amounts Amounts
rendered by charged to owed by owed to
related related related related
party party party party
Related party £ million £ million £ million £ million
Parent undertakings
2020 - - 4901.2 (l60.4)
2019 - - - (52.2)
Fellow subsidiary
undcertakings
2020 - - 248 -
2019 - - 1.6 -
Liberty Global group
undertakings
2020 (325.7) 276.9 1,695.4 (90.00
2019 (223.4) 283.8 353 (48.9)

Parent undertakings

The group is headed by Virgin Media Inc. and has been indebted t the group, which receives interest income
according to the terms of each loan agreement. The group recharges the ultimate parenl company [or certain
costs directly attributed to the operations of that company including allocable payroll and related expenses,

Feliow subsidiary nndertukings

The net recovery of debts by Virgin Media Limited relating 1o the customers of fellow subsidiary undertakings,
namely Virgin Media Mobile inance Limited. through centralised debt collection and treasury operations,
gencrates trading balances which are offsct by operating expenses and capital purchases that are also recharged
by Virgin Media Limited. Virgin Media Limited is an indircet subsidiary ef the company whilst Virgin Media
Mobile Finance Limited ts outside the group headed by the company.

Liberty Group undertukings

‘The company s ultimate parent is Liberty Global plc which also controls the group and the Virgin Media group.
Certain debt raised by the group has been passed up to Liberty Global entities that sit outside the Virgin Media
group. The debt of £4,798.7 million (sce note 12) attracts interest which Liberty Global entities pay to the group
according to the terms of each loan arrangement.

Terms and conditions of trunsactions with related parties

The terms of the loans pavable to parent undentakings are as outlined in note 16, Certain expenses are
specifically attributable to cach company in the group. Where costs are incurred by Virgin Media I.imited on
behalf of other group companies. expenses are allocated to the other group companies on a basis that, in the
opinion of the directors. is reasonable.
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29 Related party transactions (continued)

30

Compensation of key management personnel (including directors)
The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is shown below:

2020 2019

£ million £ million

Shori-term employee benefits 8.0 10.5
Post-cmployment benefits 0.1 0.1
Non-cquity incentive plan 0.3 13
Share based payments 4.8 4.6
T 132 18.5

Key management represents directors and members of Virgin Media’s executive committee.

Principal subsidiary undertakings

The investments in which the group held at least 20% of the nominal value of any class of share capital, all of

which are unlisted, are as follows. All are registered in England and Wales unless otherwise noted.

Proportion
aof
voting rights
ared
Subsidiary Holding  shares held
Direct shareholdings of Virgin Media Finance PLC
Virgin Media Investment Holdings Limited Ordinary 100%
Indirect shareholdings
ntl Business Limited Ordinary 100%
ntl CableComms Group Limited Ordinary 100%
ntl Glasgow z Ordinary 56%
ntt Kirklecs Ordinary 52%
Virgin Media Business Limited Ordinary 100%
Virgin Media Investments Limited Ordinary 100%
Virgin Media Limited Ordinary 100%
Virgin Media Pavments Limited Ordinary 100%
Virgin Media Senior Investments Limited Ordinary 100%
Virgin Media Wholesale Limited Ordinary 100%
Virgin Mobile Telecoms Limited Ordinary 100%
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Principal
activites

Finance

Telecoms
Holding
Telecoms
T'clecoms
Telecoms
Finance
Telecoms
Collcctions
Holding
Telecoms

Telecoms
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36 Principal subsidiary undertakings {continued)

Indirect shareholdings - guaranteed under section 349 {(C)of the Companies Act 2006

Propartion
o
voling righty
and
Tolding  shares hoig Prin.c.f.paJ
dactivites
Subsidiary
BCMYV Limited Ordinary 100%, Jormant
Bimingham Cablc Limited ¢ Ordinary [00% Dormant
Cable London Limited Ordinary 100% Dormant
CableTel Herts and Beds Limited Ordinary 16G0% Dormant
CableTel Northern [reland Iimited b Ordinary 100% Dormant
CableTel Surrcy and Hampshire Limited Ordinary 100% Dormant
Eurobell {1 loMings) Limited Ordinary 100%, Holding
ntl (B) Limited Ordinary 100% Holding
ntl (Broadland) Limited Ordinary 100% Dormant
ol (CW () Corporation Limited 111 Ordinary 100% Dormant
ntl (South Last) Limjied Ordinary 100%% Dormant
ntl (v} Ordinary [00% Dormant
ntl CableComms Surrey Ordinary 100%, Dormant
ntl Midlands Limjted Ordinary 100% Dormant
ntl National Networks Limited Ordinary 100%, Dormant
ntl Peasion Trustees IT Limited Ordinary 100% Corporate
Trustee
ntl Pension Trusiees Limitcd Ordinary 100% Co’r-poratc
lrustee
ntl South Central Iimjied Ordinary 100% Dormant
nt) Telecon Services [ Amited Ordinary [00% Dormant
nl} Trusiees Limited Ordinary 100% Corporate
d Trustee
Iri]r;\r:;[ Communications (Dundee & Perth) 5 Ordinary L00% Dormant
Telewest Communications {(Glenrothes) 1imited z Ordinary 1002 Dormant
'I'f:lcwcsvl (,jummunicaiions (Midlands and North Ordinarv 100% Dormant
West) Limited i
Telewest Communications (North Fast) Limited O Ordinary 100%, Dormant
Telewest Communications {(Scotland) Limiteq b Ordinary 100°%, Dormant
Telewest Communications (South l2ast) Limited O Ordinary 1G0%, Dormant
Telewes( Communications (South West) Limited ¢ Ordinary 100% Dorman
Telewest Communications (1 yneside) Limited i Ordinary 100% Dormant
Telewest Communications Cable Limited Ordinary 100%;, Dormant
Theseus No.1 Limited Ordinary 100% Holding
Theseus No.2 Limited Ordinary 100% Holding
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30 Principal subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Indirect shareholdings - guaranteed under section 349 ( C ) of the Companies Act 2006 (continued)

Virgin Media Employee Medical Trust Limited Ordinary 100% (0_?:([::?&
Virgin Media PCLIC 11 Limited U] Ordinary 100% Dormant
Virgin Media PCHC Limited Ordinary 100% Dormant
VM Transfers {(No 4) Limited Ordinary 100% Dormant
Yorkshire Cable Communications Limited Ordinary 100% Dormant
Indirect shareholdings - guaranteed under section 479 ( A ) of the Companies Act 2006
Proportion
of
voring righls
and
Holding  shares held Prr'ri.ci{n al
activites
Subsidiary
Bitbuzz UK Limited Ordinary 100% Telecoms
Cable on Demand Limited Ordinary 100% Dormant
Channel 6 Broadcasting L.imited v Ordinary 100% Telecoms
Cullen Broadeasting Limited by Ordinary 100% Telecoms
Flextech Limited Ordinary 100% Dormant
General Cable Limited Ordinary 100% Holding
Kish Media Limited b4 Ordinary 100% Dormant
Matchco Limited Ordinary T6% Dormant
ntl (CWCY Limited D Ordinary 100% Dormant
NTI. CableComms Group, LLLC = Common stock 100% Dormant
ntl Communications Services Limited Ordinary 100% [{olding
ntl Glasgow Holdings 1imited ) Ordinary 51% Holding
ntl Kirklees Holdings Limited i Ordinary 51% Holding
nt Rectangle Limited Ordinary 100% Holding
T'elewest Communications Networks Limited Ordinary 100% Holding
Telewest Limited Ordinary 100% Holding
Tullamore Beta Limited Ny Ordinary 100% Holding
TV Three Enterprises Limited ¥ Ordinary 100% Dormant
TV Three Sales Limited ¥ Ordinary 100% Dormant
Virgin Mcdia Bristol [.1.C = Common stock 100% Finance
Virgin Media Fincoe 2 [imited Ordinary 100% Noan-Trading
Virgin Media Finco Limited Ordinary 100% I'inance
Virgin Media Intermediary Purchaser Limited Ordinary 100% Non-Trading
Virgin Media Opcrations Limited Ordinary 100% Holding
Virgin Media Sccrctarics Limited Ordinary 100% Dormant
Virgin Media Secured Finance PLC Ordinary 100% Finance
Virgin Media SFFA Finance Limited Ordinary 100% Finance
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30 Principal subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Indirect shareholdings - guaranteed under section 479 ( A ) of the Companies Act 2006 (continued)

Virgin Media Television Limited v Ordinary 100% Telecoms
irgin Media Irade Receivables T cdiary

\_f_lrg:,m‘ edia Trade Receivables ntermediary Ordinary 100% Non-Trading

Financing limited -

Virgin Wil'i Limited Ordinary 100% Telecoms

Virgin Media Ireland Group Limited Ordinary 100% Holding

All companies are registered at 300 Brook Drive. Reading, United Kingdom. RG2 6UU, unless
otherwise noted below:

] Unit 3. Blackstaff Road, Kennedy Way Industrial Estate, Belfast, BT11 9AP

P Macken House, 39/40 Mayor Street Upper, Dublin 1, D01 COW

z 1 South Gyle Crescent Lane, Edinburgh, EH12 9EG

= 251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmington. DE 19808. Thesc entilics are registered in the UISA.
K Remainder of shares held by group undertakings

(i) Dissolved subseguent to the year end

The company has issued a guarantee under Section 394(C) of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 31
December 2020 in respeet of the wholly owned dormant subsidiaries listed above in section “Indirect
shareheldings — guaranteed under Section 394(C) of the Companics Act 2006”. The company guaraniees all
outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary company is subject to at 31 December 2020, until they are
satisfied in full and the puarantee is enforceable against the company by any person to whom the subsidiary
company is liable in respeet of those liabilitics, These dormant subsidiaries have taken advantage of the
exemption from preparing individual accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020 by virtue of Scetion

394(A) ol'the Companies Act 2006.

The guarantee under Section 39HC) of the Companics Act 2006 is in respect of the above subsidiarics, the

majority of which are 100% owned, cither directly or indircctly.

The company has issued a guarantee under Section 479(C) of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 31
December 2020 in respect of the subsidiarics listed above in section “Indirect shareholdings — guaranieed under
Section 479(C) of the Companies Act 2006”7, The company guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the
subsidiary company is subject to at 31 December 2020, until they are satisfied in full and the guarantee is
enforceable against the company by any person 10 whom the subsidiary company is liable in respect of those
liabilities. These active subsidiaries have taken advantage of the exemption from audil of individual accounts

for the year ended 31 December 2020 by virtue of Section 479(A) of the Companies Act 2006.

The guarantec under Section 47%(C) of the Companics Act 2006 is in respect of the above subsidiaries, the

majority of which are 100% owned, cither directly or indirectly.

31 Parent undertaking and controlling party

The company’s immediate parent undertaking is Virgin Media Communications [.imited.

The smallest and largest group of which the company is a member and in 1o which the company’s accounts
were consolidated at 31 December 2020 are combined financial statcments of the *Virgin Media Group® and the

consolidated accounts of Liberty Global ple, respectively.

The company’s ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party at 31 December 2020 was Liberty Global ple.

Copies of the combined financial statements of the ‘Virgin Media Group™ and the consolidated accounts of
Liberty Global ple are available on Liberry Global's website al www . libertvglobal.com or from the company

secretary, Liberty Global ple. Griffin House, 161 Hammersmith Road, ondon, United Kingdom. W6 8BS,
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32 Post Balance Sheet Events

Joint venture transactions

On 7 May 2020, Liberty Global entered into a Contribution Agreement with. among others, Telefonica, SA
(lelefonica). Pursuant to this agreement, Liberty Global and Telefonica agreed to form a 50:50 joint venture,
which will combine Virgin Media’s operations in the UK with Telefonica’s mobile business in the UK o create
a nationwide integraled communications provider. The formation of the joint venture was completed on 1 June
2021.

On 28 February 2021 Liberty Global entered into a contribution agreement with Tche Bideo SARL. Pursuant to
this agreement, Liberyy Global and Echo Bideo SARL agreed to form a 50:50 joint venture, which witl manage
a portfolio of imvestment properties.

Disposal of investment in subsidiaries

On 4 March 2021, as part of a wider group restructure, the group disposed of its investment in Cullen
Broadceasting Limited and Tullamore Beta Limited.
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Notes 2020 2019
£ million £ million
Fixed assets
Investments in subsidiarics 5 4,699.4 4,699.4
Current assets
Debtors: amounts falling due after more than onc year 6 7.9 33.9
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 6 1.966.5 2,000.0
Cash at bark and in hand 0.7 1.4
1,975.1 2,035.3
Creditors: amounts falling due within one vear 7 (598.3) (329.5)
Net current assets 1,376.8 1,705.8
Total assets less current liabilities 6.076.2 6.405.2
Creditors: amounts falling due afler more than one year  § (9.207.3} (9,013,5)
Net liabilities (3.131.1) (2,608.3)
Capital and reserves
Ordinary shares 10 0.1 0.1
Share premium account It 6259 625.9
Capital contribution 11 5.0 5.0
Accumulated losscs 11 (3,762.1) (3,239.3)
Shareholders’ deficit (3.131.1) (2.608.3)

The notes on pages 80 to 89 form part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on 28
June 2021.

L Milner
Director

Company Registration Number: 05061787
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Share Profit
Share premium  Capital and loss
capital account contribution account Total

£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

At 1 January 2020 0.1 625.9 5.0 (3,239.3)  (2.608.3)
Comprehensive income for the year

Loss for the year - - - (522.8) (322.8)
As at December 2020 0.1 625.9 5.0 (3,762.1)  (3,131.1)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Share Profit
Share premium  Capital and loss
capital account contribution account Total
£ million £ million £ millien £ million £ million

At 1 January 219 0.1 6259 5.0 (2.813.2) (2,182.2)
Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year - - - (426.1) {426.1)
As at December 2019 0.1 625.9 3.0 (3,.239.3) (2,608.3)

‘The notes on pages 80 to 89 form part of these financial statements.
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1 Company information

Virgin Media Finance PLC {thc “company™) is a private company incorporated, domiciled and registered in the
UK. The registered number is 05061787 and the registered address is 500 Brook Drive, Reading, United Kingdom,
RG2 6ULL

2 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies is set out below. Al accounting policies have been applied
consistently, unless noted below.

2.1 Basis of accounting

These financial statements were prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost basis in
accordance with the Companics Act 2006 and the Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (“FRS 1017).

In preparing these financial statements, the company applics the recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements of Tnternational Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of Companies Act 2006,
and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken,

‘The company’s ultimate parent undertaking, TLiberty Global ple, includes the company in its consolidaled financial
statements, The consolidated financial statements of Liberty Global ple are prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and are available to the public and may be obtained from Liberty
Global’s website at www.libertyglobal.com.

In these financial statements, the company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respeet of the
following disclosures, where required equivalent disclosures are included within the company’s consolidated
financial statements:

e acash flow statement and related notes;

e disclosures in respect of related party transactions with fellow group undertakings;

¢ disclosures in respect of capital management:

e the effects of new but not yet effective International Accounting Standards;
disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management personnel; and

» disclosures ol transactions with a management entity that provides key management personnel services to
the company'.

As the consolidated financial statements of the company include the equivalent disclosures, the company has
also taken the exemptions under FRS 101 available in respeet of the following disclosures:

¢ [IFRS 2 share based payments in respect of group settled share based payments; and
¢ certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 fair value measurement and the disclosures required by IFRS 7
financial instrument disclosures.

No profit and loss account is presented by the company as permitted by Section 408 of the Cempanics Act 2006.
2.2 Going concern

The financial statements have been approved on the basis that the company remains a going concern. The following
paragraphs summarisc the basis on which the directors have reached their conclusion.

It is Virgin Media’s practice for operational and financial management to be undertaken at a group level rather than
lor individual entities that arc wholly owned by the group. Treasury operations and cash management for all of
Liberty Global’s wholly owned subsidiaries are managed on a Liberty Global group basis. As pan of normal
business practice. regular cash flow forecasts for both short and long term commitments are undertaken at group
level,
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2 Accounting pelicies {continued)
2.2 Going concern (continued)

Forecasts and projections prepared for the Virgin Media group as a whole, indicate that cash on hand. together with
cash from operations, repayment of amounts duc to Virgin Media from the Liberty Global group and undrawn
revolving credit facilities, are expected to be sufficient for the Virgin Media group's and hence the company s cash
requirements through 1o at least 12 months from the approval of these financial statements.

Whilst the detailed cash [low forecasts are prepared at the group level, the directors have also asscssed the position
ol the company. Notwithstanding net LBabilities of £3,131.1 million as at 31 December 2020 and a loss for the year
end of £527 & millian 1his assessment indicates that, taking account of reasonably possible downsides. the company
will have sulticient resources, through funding from fellow subsidiary companies to meet its liabilitics as they fall
due for that period. Virgin Media Ine. has indicated its intention to continue to make such funds available to the
company as are needed.

As with any company placing reliance on other group entitics [or {inancial support, the dirceters acknowledge that
there can be no certainty that this support will continue although, at the date of approval of these financial
statements, they have no reason to believe that it will not do so. Consequently, the directors are confident that the
company will have sulficient funds to continue to meet its liabilitics as they fall due for at least 12 months from the
date of approval of the financial statements and have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
Consideration of the on-going impact of COVID-19 has not altered this conclusion.

2.3 Foreign currencies

Transactions in forcign currencics are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monciary asscts and
lighilities denominated in foreign currencics are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

2.4 Loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains and losses arising on the repurchase, scttlement or otherwise cancellation of liabilities arc recognised
respectively in finance income and finance costs using the effective interest method.

Finance costs which are incurred in connection with the issuance of debt arc deferred and sct off against the
borrowings to which they relate. Deferred finance costs are amortised over the term of the related debt using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as creditors: amounts falling due within one year unless the company has an unconditional
right to defer setilement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period in which case they are
classified as creditors: amounts falling due after morc than onc year.

2.5 Investments

Investments arc recorded at cost, less provision for impairment as appropriate.  The company assesses atl each
reporting dale whether there is an indication that an investment may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
company makes an estimate of the investment’s recoverable amount, Where the carrying amount of an investment
exceeds its recoverable ameunt, the investment is considered impaired and i3 written down to its recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impalrment loss is reversed only if there was an event not foreseen in the original
impairment calculations. such as a change in use of the investment or a change in economic conditions. The
reversal of impairment loss would be to the extent of the lower of the recoverable amount and the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised {or the investment in prior years.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less.
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
2.7 Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The group has established policics and procedures to govern the management of its exposure o interest rate and
forcign currency exchange rate risks, through the use of derivative financial instruments, including interest rate
swaps, cross-currency’ interest rale swaps and foreign currency {orward rate coniracts.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasurcd at fair value at cach balance sheet date,

Derivatives are recognised as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negatis ¢,

The foreign currency forward rate contracts, interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps are vafued
using internal models based on obscrvable inputs, counterparty valuations or market transactions in either the listed
or over-the-counter markets, adjusted for non-performance risk. Non-performance risk is based upon quoted credit
default spreads for counterparties to the contracts and swaps. Derivative contracts which are subject to master
netting arrangements are not offset and have not provided, nor require, cash collateral with any counterparty.

While these instruments are subject to the tisk of loss from changes in cxchange rates and interest rates, these losses
would generally be offset by gains in the relaled exposures. Financial instruments are only used to hedge underlying
commercial cxposures. The group does not enter into derivative financial instruments [or speculative trading
purposes, nor does it enter into derivative financial instruments with a level of complexity or with a risk that is
greater than the exposure to be managed,

For derivatives which are designated as hedges, the hedging relationship is documented at its inception. This
documentation identifies the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged
and how effectiveness will be measured throughout its duration. Such hedges are expected at inception to be highly
cffective.

The group designates certain derivatives as either fair value hedges. when hedging exposure to variability in the fair
value of recognised asscts or liabilities or firm commitments, or as cashflow hedges, when hedging exposure to
variability in cash {lows that are ¢ither attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly probable forecast transaction.

Derivatives that are not part of an effective hedging relationship, as sct out in [FRS 9, must be classified as held for
trading and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The treatment of gains and losscs arising from revaluing derivatives designated as hedging instruments depends
upon the nature of the hedging relationship and are treated as follows:

Cash flow hedges

For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised dircetly in
other comprehensive income, while the ineffective portion is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts taken 1o other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the profit and loss account when the hedged transaction is recognised in
profit or loss, such as when a forecast sale or purchase occurs, in the same ling of the profit and loss account as the
recognised hedged item. Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or liability, the gains and losses
previously accumulated in equity are transferred to the initial measurement of the cost of the non-[inancial asset or
liabitity.

If a forccast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without
replacement or rollover, or if 1ts designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensis e income remain in equity until the forccast transaction occurs and are reclassified to the profit and
loss account.
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2.7 Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)
Fair value hedges

T'or fair value hedges. the changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument are rccognised in profit or loss
immediately, together with anv changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable 1o the
hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk are recognised in the line of the profit and loss account relating to the hedged item.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollever, or il its
designation as a hedge is revoked, then the fair value adjustinent to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising,
from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.

3 Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing these financial statements, management has made estimates and judgements that affect the application
of the company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilitics, income and cxpenses.

Estimates and assumptions

Carrying value of investments

Investments are held at cost less any necessary provision for impairment. Where the impairment assessment did not
provide any indication of impairment, ne provision is required. If any such indications exist. the carrying value of
an investment is written down to its recoverable amount.

Recoverahility of intercompany receivables

Intercompany reccivables are stated at their recoverable amount less any necessary provision. Recoverability of
intercompany receivables is asscssed annually and a provision is recognised if any indications exist that the
receivables are not considered recoverable.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Management uses valuation technigues to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market
quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent
with how market participants would price the instrument.

Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case
management uses the best information available. Istimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would
be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date (see note 9).

4 lLoss attributable to members of the parent company

The loss in the accounts of the parent company was £522.8 million (2019: £426.1 million).

5 Investments in subsidiaries

£ million
Cost and net book value:
At 1 January 2020 4,699.4
At 31 December 2020 4,699.4
Net book value:
At 31 December 2020 4,699 .4
At 31 December 2019 4.6994
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Details of the principal investments in which the group or the company holds at least 20% of the nominal value of
any class of share capital, all of which are unlisted, can be seen in note (o the consolidated financial statements,

In the opinion of the directors the aggregate value of the investments in subsidiary undertakings is not less than the
amount at which they are stated in the financial statements,

6 Debtors
2020 1019
£ million £ million
Due after one year
Loan notes due from group undertakings 1,933.2 1,833.0
Derivative financial assels 3313 1670
1,966.5 2,000.0
Pue within one year
Derivative financial assets 7.9 339 :

Amounts owed by group undertakings due after one year represent loan notes which had a carrving value of
£1,933.2 million (2019 - £1,833.0 million) at the balance sheet date. Loan notes arce denominaled in sterling,
bear interest of 4,95% (subject to adjustment) and mature in April 2026.

7 Creditors: amounts falling due within one vear

2020 2019

£ million £ million

Derivative financial liabilities 35.0 6.6
Interest on loan notes due to group undertakings 833 49.2
Interest payable on senior notes 272 23.1
Amounts owed {o group undertakings 76.6 748
Loan notes due to group undertakings 376.2 175.8
598.3 329.5

Loan notes due to group undertakings duc within one year include loan notes which had a carrying value of
£376.2 million (2019 - £175.8 million) at the balance sheet date. Loan notes are denominated in sterling and US
dollar, bear interest ranging from 1.32% to 7.33% and are repavable on demand.

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest-free and repay able on demand.
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8  Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2020 2019

£ million £ million

[.0an notes due to group undertakings 7.996.6 7,789.7
Senior notes 1.119.5 1.187.3
Derivative financial labilities 91.2 36.5
9.207.3 9,013.5

Loan notes due tn pronp undertakings falling due afier more than one vear had a carrving value of £7.996.6
million {2019 - £7,789.7) at the balance sheet date. Loan notes are denominated in sterling and LS dollar, bear
inlercst at 4.89% (subjcct to adjustment), and mature between April 2026 and January 2028,

Borrowings are repayable as follows:

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Amounts falling due:
In more than two years but not more than five years - 509.2
In more than {ive vears 9.116.1 8,467.8
9.116.1 £,977.0
Borrowings not wholly repayable within five vears arc as follows:
2020 2019
£ million £ million
Loan notes due to group undertakings 7,996.6 7,789.7
Scnior notes 1,1£9.5 678.1
9.116.1 84678
Total borrowings comprisc: 2020 2019
£ million £ million
5.25% ULS. dollar senior notes due 2022 - 388
4.875% U.S. dollar senior notes due 2022 - 34.0
5.125% Sterling senior notes due 2022 - 44.1
6.00% .S, dollar scnior notes due 2024 - 3747
5.75% US dollar senior notes duc 2025 - 2031
4.5% Luro senior notes due 2023 - 3894
5.0% UK. dollar senior notes duc 2030 679.3 -
3.75% Euro senior notes duc 2030 447.8 -
1,127.1 1,194.1
[Less issue costs (7.6) (6.8)
11193 1I87.3

Total senior notes




Yirgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Company Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

8

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)
The company has the following senior notes in issue as at 31 December 2020:

1) 5.00% scnior notes due 15 July 2030 - the principal amount at maturily is $675.60 million. Interest is payable
semi-annually on 135 January and 13 July commencing 15 January 2021.

2) 3.75% senior notes duc 15 July 2030 — the principal amount at maturity is €500.0 million. Tnterest is payvable
semi-annually on 15 January and 15 July commencing 15 January 202].

Virgin Media Inc,, a parent company of the company, and all the intermediate holding companics, guarantec
the scnior notes on a senior basis, Virgin Media investment Ioldings Limited, a dircet wholly-owned
subsidiary of ithe company, guarantecs the senior notes on a senior subordinated basis and has no significant
assets of its own other than its investments in its subsidiarics. The company has given a {ull and unconditional
guaranice of all amounts payable under the terms of the Virgin Media group’s senior sceured credit facility and
sentor secured notcs.

Financial instruments

2020 2019
£ million £ miltion
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or toss 41.1 200.9
Iinancial asscts that are debt insruments measured at amortised cost 18333 1.833.0 ~
1,974.4 2,033.9
Financial labilities
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (126.2) (43.1)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (9,679.4)  (5.299.9)

(9.805.6)  (9.343.0)

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise interest rale swaps and cross currency
interest rate swaps.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise ameunts owed by group undertakings.

Financial hisbilities measured at fair value through prolit or loss comprise interest rate swaps and ¢ross currency
intercst rate swaps and certain other loans.

Financial lizbilities measured at amortised cost comprise senior secured notes net of issue costs, interest
pavable on senior notes, amounts owed to group undertakings, accruals and deferred income.

Derivative financial instruments are designed to mitigaie the risks experienced by the company, The compansy
has obligalions in a combination of U.S. dollars and sterling at fixed and variablc interest rates. As a result, the
company is exposed to variability in its cash flows and carnings resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange ratcs and interest rates.

‘The company’s objective in managing, its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency exchange rates is to
decrease the volatility of it carnings and cash flows caused by changes in the underlying raws. The company
has established policics and procedures o govern these exposures and has entered inte derivative financial
instruments including interest rate swaps, cross-currency intercst swaps and foreign currency forward rate
tontracts. Tt is the company's pohey not o enter into derivative financial instrumenzs for speculative 1rading
purposes, nor to enter into derivative financial instruments with a level of complexity or with a risk that is
greater than the exposure to be managed. The amounts below include amounts relating to short term as well as
long term creditors.

I'inancial and operational risk management is undertaken as part of the group's operations as a whole, These are
considered in more detail in the consolidated financial statements of the group.
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The derivative financial instruments held by the company are recorded at fair value on the balance sheet in
accordance with TFRS 9 Financial Tnstruments. The [air values of these derivative financial instruments are
valued using intemal models based on observable inputs, counterparty valuations, or market transactions in
cither the listed or ever-the counter markets, adjusted for non-performance risk.
Cross currency swap contracts
The company holds the following outstanding swap agreements with another company within the Virgin Media
group:
Final Hedge type Notional amount Notional amount Interest rate due Interest rate due
maturity due to due from to counterparty  from counterparty
date counterparty counterparty
‘000 000
Feb-22 Not designated $63,271 £44.462 5.3% 3.7%
Feb-22 Not designated $74.310 £52.219 4.9% 3.4%
Oci-24 Not designated $ 497.000 £349.250 6.0% 4.5%
Jan-26 Not designated $3.300,000 £2,318,963 3.5% 3.9%
Interest rate swap contracts
The company holds the following outstanding swap agreements with another company within the Virgin Media
group:
Final Hedge type Notional ameunt Notional amount Interest rate due Interest rate due
maturity due to due from to counterparty  from counterparty
date counterparty counterparty
Q00 ‘000
Jan-27 Not designated £400.000 £400,000 4.29% 4.80%
Nov-27 Not designated £500,000 £500,000 4.29% 4.83%
10 Share capital
£000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
76,184 (2019: 76,184) ordinary shares of £1 cach 76 76
11 Accumulated losses

Share capital
The balance classified as share capital represents the nominal value on issue of the company's share capital,
comprising £1 ordinary sharcs.

Share premium account

[ncludes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaciion costs associated with the issuing of
shares are deducted from share premivm.
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13

14

Accumulated losses (continued)

Capital contribution
The £5 million capital contribution was received from Virgin Media Communications limited as part of a
comprehensive group restructuring in 2006,

Accumulated losses
Inchades all current and prier period retained profits and losses net of dividends paid,

Auditer’s and directors’ remuneration

l'ces paid to KPMG LILP for non-audit services to the parent company itself are rot disclosed in the individual
accounts of Virgin Media Finance PLC becanse group financial statements are prepared which disclose such
fees on a consolidated basis.

The directors received no remuncration for qualifving services as directors of this company. All dircclors’
remuneration is paid and disclosed in the group’s financial statements.

Guarantees

The company, along with fellow group undertakings, is party to a senior secured credit facility with a syndicate
of banks. As at 31 Dccember 2020, this comprised term facilitics that amounted to £3,982 million (2019 -
£4,015 million) and revolving credit facilitics of £1,000 million (2019 - £1,000 million). Borrowings under the
facilities arc secured against the assets of cerlain members of the group including those of this company.

In addition, a fellow group undertaking has issued senior secured notes which, subject to certain exceptions,
sharc the same guarantecs and security which have been granted in favour of the senior secured credil facility.
The amount outstanding under the senior sccured notes at 31 December 2020 amounted 0 £4,400 million
(2019 - £4,491 million). Borrowings under the notes are securcd against the assets of certain members of the
group including those of this company.

Furthermore. a fellow group undertaking has issued senior notes for which the company. along with cenain
fellow group undertakings, has guaranteed the notes on a senior subordinated basis. The amount outstanding
under the senior notes as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately £1,127 million (2019 - £1.194
million).

The company has jeint and several liabilities under a group VAT registration.

Parent undertaking and controlling party

The company's immediate parent undertaking is Virgin Media Communications Limited.

The smallest and largest groups of which the compans is a member and in to which the company’s accounts
were consolidated at 31 December 2020 are combined financial statements of the “Virgin Media Group” and the
consolidated accounts of Liberty Global ple, respectively.

The company's ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party at 31 December 2020 was Liberty Global plc.

Copies of the combined financial statements of the *Virgin Media Group® and the conselidated accounts of

Liberty Global ple are available on Liberty Global's website at www libertvglobal.com or from the company
sceretary, Liberty Global ple, Griffin House, 161 Hammersmith Road, Lenden, United Kingdom, Wé 8BS.
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15 Post Balance Sheet Events
Joint venture transaction
On 7 May 2020, Liberty Global entered into a Contribution Agreement with, among others, Telefonica, SA
(Telefonica). Pursuant to this agreement, Liberty Global and Telefonica agreed to form a 50:30 joint venture,
which will combine Virgin Media’s operations in the UK with Telefonica’s mobile business in the UK to create

a nationwide integrated communications provider. The formation of the joint v enture was completed on 1 June
2021,
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